Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

Penalita House, Ty Penallta, ‘

Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,

Ystrad Mynach, ¥strad Mymach, c A E R PH’ '. LY
Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG EVNOOR BWRDEISTREE SINGL

CAERFIFILY
>

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud &'r agenda hwn cysylltwch & Charlotte Evans
(Rhif Ffén: 01443 864210 Ebost: evanscal@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 22 Mai 2019

Annwyl Syr/Fadam,

Bydd cyfarfod Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal yn Ystafell Sirhywi, Ty Penallta, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach ar
Dydd Mercher, 29ain Mai, 2019 am 10.30 am. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol. .
Mae croeso i chi ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith
os ydych yn dymuno gwneud hynny. Bydd cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu ar gais..

Mae pob cyfarfod Pwyllgor yn agored i'r Wasg a'r Cyhoedd. Gofynnir i arsylwyr a chyfranogwyr
ymddwyn gyda pharch ac ystyriaeth at eraill. Sylwer y bydd methu & gwneud hynny yn golygu y
gofynnir i chi adael y cyfarfodydd ac efallai y cewch eich hebrwng o'r safle.

Christina Harrhy
PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO

AGENDA

Tudalennau

1 | dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb

2 Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb.

Atgoffi'r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau personol

A greener place Man gwyrddach

y ()=
= .

.

et
Gallweh oheby mewn unrhyw iaith NeY e



a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol & Deddf
Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr a
Swyddogion.

I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:-

3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 15fed Mai 2019.

1-6
| dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt: -
4 Egwyddorion Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol (Meysydd Chwarae).
7-50
5 Bwrdd Adfywio - Cynigion Prosiect
51-62
Cylchrediad:
Cynghorwyr

C.J. Cuss, N. George, C.J. Gordon, Mrs B. A. Jones, P.A. Marsden, S. Morgan, L. Phipps, D.V. Poole a
Mrs E. Stenner,

A Swyddogion Priodol.

SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH
Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwylligor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i'r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas a’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu.
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i'r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd neu cysylltwch & Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy
e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01443 863028.



http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>
CABINET

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD YN NHY PENALLTA, TREDOMEN,
AR DDYDD MERCHER 15 MAI 2019 AM 10:30 A.M.

YN BRESENNOL.:
Y Cynghorydd D. Poole — Cadeirydd
Y Cynghorwyr:

C. Cuss (Gofal Cymdeithasol a Lles), N. George (Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth), C.J. Gordon
(Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), Mrs B.A. Jones (Cyllid, Perfformiad a Llywodraethu), P.
Marsden (Addysg a Chyflawniad), S. Morgan (Economi, Isadeiledd a Chynaliadwyedd), L.
Phipps (Cartrefi a Lleoedd) ac E. Stenner (Amgylchedd a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd).

Ynghyd &:

R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol — Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), C. Harrhy
(Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro), D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol — Gwasanaethau
Cymdeithasol) ac M. S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro — Cymunedau).

Hefyd yn bresennol:

M. Williams (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Eiddo Dros Dro), C. Edwards (Rheolwr lechyd yr
Amgylchedd) a C. Evans (Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor).

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU DROS ABSENOLDEB

Ni chafwyd unrhyw ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT

Datganodd yr Aelodau Cabinet canlynol fuddiannau personol yn yr eitemau canlynol:

Y Cynghorydd C. Cuss am eitemau 4 a 5 (Strategaeth Rheoli Asedau — Eiddo a Thir;
Adroddiad Adolygiad Eiddo 2019) fel Aelod Pwyllgor Canolfan Gymunedol a Llywodraethwr
Ysgol.

Y Cynghorydd N. George am eitemau 4 a 5 (Strategaeth Rheoli Asedau — Eiddo a Thir;
Adroddiad Adolygiad Eiddo 2019) fel Llywodraethwr Ysgol a Chynghorydd Cymuned.

Y Cynghorydd C. Gordon am eitem 5 (Adroddiad Adolygiad Eiddo 2019) fel Llywodraethwr
Ysgol.

Y Cynghorydd B. Jones am eitemau 4 a 5 (Strategaeth Rheoli Asedau — Eiddo a Thir;
Adroddiad Adolygiad Eiddo 2019) fel Cynghorydd Cymuned a Llywodraethwr Ysgol.

Page 1



Y Cynghorydd S. Morgan am eitemau 4 a 5 (Strategaeth Rheoli Asedau — Eiddo a Thir;
Adroddiad Adolygiad Eiddo 2019) fel Aelod Pwyllgor Canolfan Gymunedol, Cynghorydd
Cymuned a Llywodraethwr Ysgol.

Y Cynghorydd L. Phipps am eitem 5 (Adroddiad Adolygiad Eiddo 2019) fel Aelod Pwyllgor
Canolfan Gymunedol, Llywodraethwr Ysgol ac Ymddiriedolwr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon.

Y Cynghorydd D. Poole am eitemau 4 a 5 (Strategaeth Rheoli Asedau — Eiddo a Thir;
Adroddiad Adolygiad Eiddo 2019) fel LIywodraethwr Ysgol.

Y Cynghorydd E. Stenner am eitem 5 (Adroddiad Adolygiad Eiddo 2019) fel Aelod Pwyligor
Canolfan Gymunedol, LIlywodraethwr Ysgol ac Ymddiriedolwr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon.

Gan fod y rhain yn fuddiannau personol a heb fod yn rhagfarnllyd, nid oedd yn ofynnol i
Aelodau adael yr ystafell, a gallent gymryd rhan yn y ddadl a phleidleisio.
CABINET - 24 EBRILL 2019
PENDERFYNWYD vy caiff cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 22 Ebrill 2019 eu
cymeradwyo a'u llofnodi fel cofnod cywir.

MATERION LLE MAE ANGEN PENDERFYNIADAU GWEITHREDOL

STRATEGAETH RHEOLI ASEDAU - EIDDO A THIR
Datganodd yr Aelod Cabinet canlynol fuddiannau personol yn yr eitem hon:

Y Cynghorydd C. Cuss fel Aelod Pwyllgor Canolfan Gymunedol Ael-y-bryn, Llywodraethwr ac
Is-gadeirydd Ysgol Gynradd Rhymni Uchaf a Llywodraethwr Ysgol Idris Davies 3-18.

Y Cynghorydd N. George fel Lliywodraethwr Ysgol Gyfun Rhisga ac Ysgol Gynradd Ty Sign a
Chynghorydd Cymuned ar gyfer Rhisga.

Y Cynghorydd B. Jones fel Cadeirydd Cyngor Cymuned y Fan a Llywodraethwr Ysgolion Sant
lago a Cenydd Sant.

Y Cynghorydd S. Morgan fel LIiywodraethwyr Ysgol Gynradd Llanfabon, Cadeirydd Canolfan
Gymunedol Nelson a Chynghorydd Cymuned Nelson.

Y Cynghorydd L. Phipps fel LIlywodraethwyr Ysgol Uwchradd Bedwas ac Ysgol Gynradd a
Chymunedol Graig-y-rhaca, Cynrychiolydd y Cyngor i Ganolfan Gymunedol Graig-y-rhaca ac
Ymddiriedolwr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon.

Y Cynghorydd D. Poole fel Llywodraethwr Ysgol Gymraeg Pengam ac Ysgol Gynradd Fleur-
de-lis.

Y Cynghorydd E. Stenner fel Llywodraethwr Ysgol Gynradd Treffilip ac Ysgol Gynradd y
Rhosyn Gwyn, Cynghorydd Cymuned ar gyfer Treffilip ac Ymddiriedolwr Sefydliad y Glowyr
Coed Duon.

Gan fod y rhain yn fuddiannau personol a heb fod yn rhagfarnllyd, nid oedd yn ofynnol i
Aelodau adael yr ystafell, a gallent gymryd rhan yn y ddadl a phleidleisio.

Ceisiodd yr adroddiad gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i weithredu'r Strategaeth Rheoli Asedau —
Eiddo a Thir.

Page 2



Nododd y Cabinet fod y Strategaeth Rheoli Asedau — Eiddo a Thir — bresennol wedi'i
mabwysiadu yn 2011 ac nid yw'n adlewyrchu'n llawn y sefyllfa bresennol ac arfaethedig o ran
cymdeithas, gwasanaeth, staffio a thueddiadau a phwysau ariannol. O ganlyniad, mae'r
Strategaeth Rheoli Asedau — Eiddo a Thir — (a atodwyd i adroddiad y Cabinet) yn amlinellu'r
strategaeth ar gyfer rheoli asedau eiddo a thir yr Awdurdod am y cyfnod 2019 i 2024.

Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a chafwyd trafodaeth.

Trafododd yr Aelodau'r asedau a'r safleoedd sy'n eiddo i'r Cyngor a gofynnwyd am eglurhad
ar reoli'r gyllideb. Cadarnhaodd swyddogion fod yna nifer o safleoedd — gan gynnwys
Ysgolion, Safleoedd Addysg Oedolion, Toiledau Cyhoeddus, Adeiladau Twristiaeth a Thai
Lloches — lle mae'r gyllideb yn cael ei rheoli gan y tenant, a bydd gwybodaeth am hyn yn cael
ei chynnwys yn y Strategaeth Rheoli Asedau — Eiddo a Thir — am resymau eglurder.

Cafwyd trafodaethau ynglyn & Thir Anweithredol heb Ddiben Strategol, gan gyfeirio'n benodol
at Waredu Tir ar gyfer Datblygiad Preswyl, a gofynnodd y Cabinet am i Gartrefi Caerffili gael y
cynnig cyntaf ar leiniau gwag o dir sydd o dan ystyriaeth ailddatblygu, mewn ymgynghoriad a'r
Cabinet, Landlord Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig, neu werthu ar y farchnad agored.

Trafododd yr Aelodau'r Arfarniadau o'r Opsiynau a thrafodwyd yr opsiwn arfaethedig i droi
Rhydd-ddaliadau yn Lles-ddaliadau. Esboniodd Swyddogion fod hyn yn cyfeirio at adeiladau
nad ydynt yn cael eu defnyddio ar hyn o bryd, lle ffafrir tenantiaid er mwyn cynyddu refeniw.
Fodd bynnag, sicrhaodd y Swyddogion yr Aelodau y bydd hyn yn cael ei egluro yn yr
adroddiad.

Cafwyd trafodaethau am Gylch Gorchwyl Eiddo a Thir y Grwp Rheoli Asedau a gofynnodd yr
Aelodau am i'r Aelod/Aelodau Cabinet perthnasol hefyd fod yn rhan o gyfansoddiad y griwp.
Cytunodd Swyddogion i ddiwygio yn unol a'r cais.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd i gymeradwyo'r argymhelliad yn yr
adroddiad. Drwy ddangos dwylo cytunwyd hyn yn unfrydol.

PENDERFYNWYD, yn amodol ar y diwygiadau a amlinellwyd yn y cyfarfod, i
fabwysiadu Strategaeth Rheoli Asedau — Eiddo a Thir 2019-2024, a'i gweithredu.

ADRODDIAD ADOLYGIAD EIDDO 2019
Datganodd yr Aelodau Cabinet canlynol fuddiannau personol yn yr eitem hon:

Y Cynghorydd C. Cuss fel Aelod Pwyllgor Canolfan Gymunedol Ael-y-bryn, Llywodraethwr ac
Is-gadeirydd Ysgol Gynradd Rhymni Uchaf a Llywodraethwr Ysgol Idris Davies 3—18.

Y Cynghorydd N. George fel Llywodraethwr Ysgol Gyfun Rhisga ac Ysgol Gynradd Ty Sign a
Chynghorydd Cymuned ar gyfer Rhisga.

Y Cynghorydd C. Gordon fel LIlywodraethwr Ysgol Gynradd y Bryn.

Y Cynghorydd B. Jones fel Cadeirydd Cyngor Cymuned y Fan a Llywodraethwr Ysgolion Sant
lago a Cenydd Sant.

Y Cynghorydd S. Morgan fel Llywodraethwr Ysgol Gynradd Llanfabon, Cadeirydd Canolfan
Gymunedol Nelson a Chynghorydd Cymuned Nelson.

Y Cynghorydd L. Phipps fel Llywodraethwr Ysgol Uwchradd Bedwas ac Ysgol Gynradd a

Chymunedol Graig-y-rhaca, Cynrychiolydd y Cyngor i Ganolfan Gymunedol Graig-y-rhaca ac
Ymddiriedolwr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon.

Page 3



Y Cynghorydd D. Poole fel Llywodraethwr Ysgol Gymraeg Pengam ac Ysgol Gynradd Fleur-
de-lis.

Y Cynghorydd E. Stenner fel Llywodraethwr Ysgol Gynradd Treffilip ac Ysgol Gynradd y
Rhosyn Gwyn, Cynghorydd Cymuned ar gyfer Treffilip ac Ymddiriedolwr Sefydliad y Glowyr
Coed Duon.

Gan fod y rhain yn fuddiannau personol a heb fod yn rhagfarnllyd, nid oedd yn ofynnol i
Aelodau adael yr ystafell, a gallent gymryd rhan yn y ddad| a phleidleisio.

Rhoddodd yr adroddiad grynodeb ffeithiol i'r Cabinet o ddaliadau eiddo'r Awdurdod (Tir ac
Adeiladau) a cheisio cymeradwyaeth i'r adolygiad eiddo sy'n cwmpasu'r cyfnod 2018-2019

Nod yr Adroddiad Adolygiad Eiddo yw rhoi trosolwg a chofnod cryno o'r hyn sy'n bortffolio
eiddo annomestig mawr ac amrywiol iawn. Mae'n cyflwyno rhai metrigau allweddol, yn amlygu
tueddiadau cyfnod, yn crynhoi gwarediadau a chaffaeliadau ac yn nodi rhai o'r heriau i ddod.
Mae'r adroddiad yn dilyn ymlaen o Adroddiad Adolygiad Eiddo 2018 a gafodd ei ystyried a'i
gymeradwyo gan y Cabinet ym mis Mai 2018.

Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a chafwyd trafodaeth.

Ystyriodd yr Aelodau'r adroddiad yn fanwl a chodwyd cwestiynau ynghylch cyflwr yr ystad,
gan gyfeirio'n benodol at adeiladau a gategoreiddir fel “C4 — Yn Weithredol Wael” a'r
cynlluniau i unioni hyn. Esboniodd Swyddogion fod nifer o gynlluniau ar waith y tu allan i'r
Portffolio Eiddo, megis Cynllun Band B Ysgolion yr 212" Ganrif, a fydd yn mynd i'r afael &
materion a nodwyd ar safleoedd ysgolion ac, yn ogystal, nodwyd nifer o Ganolfannau
Hamdden yn y categori hwn, a fydd yn derbyn sylw o dan y Strategaeth Chwaraeon a
Hamdden Egniol.

Cynhaliwyd trafodaethau ynglyn ag eiddo Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol yn Nhy Pontygwindy,
lle mae nifer o dimau wedi'u lleoli ac yn gweithio'n dda o fewn yr adeilad. Eglurodd
Swyddogion fod penderfyniad wedi cael ei wneud, mewn ymgynghoriad & staff, i adleoli staff a
chael gwared ar y safle. Nodwyd safleoedd adleoli ar gyfer pob un o'r timau a chynhaliwyd
dadansoddiad cost, a chytunodd y Swyddogion i'w ddosbarthu i'r Aelodau er gwybodaeth
iddynt.

Cododd Aelod Cabinet gwestiwn ynghylch y datblygiad preswyl yn Nhy Pontllan-fraith, a
nodwyd bod y preswylwyr wedi tynnu sylw at y ffaith bod gwaith wedi dechrau a bod coed
wedi'u torri. Esboniodd y Swyddogion mai dim ond gwaith ymchwilio sy'n cael ei gynnal ary
safle, fodd bynnag, edrychir ar hyn ymhellach, a rhoddir adborth i'r Aelodau.

Cafwyd trafodaethau ynghylch yr adeiladau a restrwyd yn yr adroddiad fel Safleoedd
Dechrau'n Deg, a nodwyd nad oedd y rhain yn eiddo i'r Cyngor ond yn adeiladau ar brydles,
cytunodd Swyddogion i gysylltu &'r Tim Ystadau a diwygio fel y bo'n briodol.

Ystyriodd y Cabinet 8l troed carbon y Cyngor a chafwyd trafodaethau ynghylch y Defnydd
Trydan Blynyddol ar gyfer Ty Penallta, a chodwyd cwestiwn am y rheswm dros y tueddiad am
i lawr a gofnodwyd yn 2017/18 a'r cynnydd bach yn 2018/19. Eglurodd Swyddogion fod nifer o
ffactorau'n effeithio ar y ffigurau; roedd y gostyngiad cychwynnol o ganlyniad i weithredu
system oeri a llaw, gan roi mwy o reolaeth dros y tymheredd a'r defnydd o ynni, ond roedd y
cynnydd bychan o ganlyniad i'r gaeaf garw yn 2018/19, gan arwain at gynnydd yn y defnydd o
ynni. Fodd bynnag, ychwanegodd Swyddogion y rhagwelir y bydd y ffigurau hyn yn lleihau'n
sylweddol yn ystod y flwyddyn nesaf ar &l rhoi'r system oleuo newydd ar waith yn Nhy
Penallta.

Wrth ystyried manylion y safle yn Rhodfa'r Liwyfen, Rhisga, hododd Aelod fod 12 uned yn yr
ardal honno. Cytunodd Swyddogion i ddiwygio'r adroddiad lle bo'n briodol.

Page 4



Yn ogystal, gofynnwyd i Swyddogion nodi bod tybiaethau'n seiliedig ar 2018/19, er mwyn
gwneud y data'n fwy clir.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd i gymeradwyo argymhellion yr
adroddiad. Drwy ddangos dwylo cytunwyd hyn yn unfrydol.

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog, i wneud
y canlynol:

i) Nodi Adroddiad Adolygiad Eiddo 2019 a'r newidiadau yn y portffolio eiddo;

ii) Cymeradwyo'r adroddiad blynyddol (fel y'i hatodir i adroddiad y Cabinet).

STRATEGAETH TOILEDAU LLEOL

Roedd yr adroddiad, a ystyriwyd gan Bwyllgor Craffu'r Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd ar 14
Mai, yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i fabwysiadu a chyhoeddi'r Strategaeth Toiledau
Lleol (“y Strategaeth”).

Nodwyd bod adroddiad wedi cael ei gyflwyno o'r blaen i'r Cabinet ar 28 Tachwedd 2018 yn
manylu ar y gofyniad i Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili lunio Strategaeth Toiledau Lleol.
Ceisiodd yr adroddiad hefyd ganiatad i ymgynghori ar y Strategaeth Toiledau Lleol ddrafft a
baratowyd. Rhaid i Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili gyhoeddi ei Strategaeth erbyn 31 Mai
20109.

Nid yw'r ddyletswydd i baratoi Strategaeth Toiledau Lleol yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i
awdurdodau lleol ddarparu a chynnal a chadw toiledau cyhoeddus yn uniongyrchol. Rhaid i'r
awdurdod lleol gymryd golwg strategol ar sut y gall y boblogaeth leol ddarparu cyfleusterau a
chael mynediad iddynt.

Ar 6l adolygu'r strategaeth hon, mae'n ofynnol i Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili gyhoeddi
datganiad o gynnydd. Dylai'r strategaeth gyfrannu at sicrhau toiledau hygyrch a glan lle
bynnag y mae pobl yn byw, yn gweithio neu'n ymweld.

Yn ystod hydref 2018, cwblhawyd asesiad o angen, gan gynnwys ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus,
er mwyn nodi'r ddarpariaeth bresennol, yr angen presennol ac yn y dyfodol, a bylchau yn y
ddarpariaeth. Ymgorfforwyd yr adborth a'r canfyddiadau o'r gwaith hwn yn y Strategaeth
ddrafft. Ar 61 hynny, cynhaliwyd ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus rhwng 14 Rhagfyr 2018 ac 8
Mawrth 2019 er mwyn casglu barn am gynnwys y Strategaeth ddrafft ddiwygiedig. Cafwyd 83
0 ymatebion ac maent wedi'u dadansoddi a'u nodi yn Atodiad 1.

Cynhaliwyd yr ymgynghoriad diwethaf fwy neu lai ar yr un pryd a'r ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus
ar y Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig; a oedd yn cynnwys cynnig i gau pum bloc o doiledau
cyhoeddus ar draws y fwrdeistref sirol. O ganlyniad, roedd llawer o'r ymatebwyr wedi cysylltu
cau'r toiledau cyhoeddus &'r Strategaeth ac, o ganlyniad, roedd llawer o'r adborth o'r
ymgynghoriad yn ymwneud & chael gwared ar y ddarpariaeth bresennol, yn enwedig
cyfleusterau ar gyfer pobl anabl.

Mae'r Strategaeth yn cyfeirio at gau'r toiledau cyhoeddus; felly ni fu angen diwygio'r
strategaeth o ganlyniad uniongyrchol i'r sylwadau a gafwyd.

Ystyriodd Pwyllgor Craffu'r Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd ganfyddiadau'r ymgynghoriad
cyhoeddus a'r Strategaeth Toiledau Lleol ddiwygiedig a darparodd sylwadau ac adborth ar y
broses ymgynghori, cyhoeddi'r strategaeth a chodi pryderon ynghylch hwylustod yr “Ap” i
ddefnyddwyr, gyda phryderon penodol am bobl hyn sydd efallai heb fynediad at ffén clyfar.
Hefyd, mynegodd y Pwyllgor Craffu nifer o bryderon ynghylch arwyddion y cyfleusterau toiled
sydd ar gael yng nghanol trefi, gyda rhai pryderon yn cael eu codi ynghylch y sticeri

Page 5



arfaethedig, a ddarperir gan Lywodraeth Cymru i hysbysu'r cyhoedd am gyfleusterau mewn
siopau ac adeiladau penodol yng nghanol trefi.

Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a chafwyd trafodaeth.

Trafododd y Cabinet y Strategaeth yn fanwl a'r cyfathrebu i ddilyn ei chyhoeddi. Gofynnwyd
am gyhoeddi datganiad manwl i'r wasg yn Newsline Caerffili yn rhoi enghraifft o sticer
Llywodraeth Cymru i godi ymwybyddiaeth, yn ogystal & manylion am y cyfleusterau sydd ar
gael.

Cafwyd trafodaethau ynghylch y broses ymgynghori ar gyfer cau toiledau cyhoeddus a
nodwyd bod llawer iawn o ymwneud & chynghorau cymuned, perchnogion safleoedd a
mudiadau gwirfoddol ac, ers cau cyfleusterau yng nghanol trefi, mae gwaith ar y gweill yng
Nghaerffili, Bargod, Rhisga a Choed Duon i drefnu trosglwyddo cyfrifoldeb am ddarparu
cyfleusterau.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd i gymeradwyo'r argymhelliad yn yr
adroddiad. Drwy ddangos dwylo cytunwyd hyn yn unfrydol.

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn Adroddiad y Swyddog, i
gymeradwyo mabwysiadu a chyhoeddi'r Strategaeth Toiledau Lleol.

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 11:08am.

Wedi'i gymeradwyo a'i llofnodi fel cofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a wneir yn 'y
cyfarfod i'w gynnal ar 29 Mai 2019.

CADEIRYDD

Page 6



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4

N
CAERPHILLY

COLUINTY BORODUGH COOLFINCIE
CYNGODOR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

CABINET - 29TH MAY 2019

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFER PRINCIPLES (PLAYING FIELDS)

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE
SERVICES

1.1 The attached report sought the views of the Scrutiny Committee on the adoption of a set of
guiding principles in relation to the transfer of playing fields to sporting organisations, prior to
the presentation to Cabinet for a decision.

1.2 The Council is receiving an increasing number of applications from sports clubs to lease
facilities (sports fields and/or pavilions). To date, the general ethos is that the Council would
support clubs ambitions (on an ad-hoc basis); however in the absence of any guiding
principles and for the reasons set out in the body of the report, this is becoming increasingly
difficult. The Council is committed, where possible, to provide assistance to clubs to become
more sustainable and enable their development and progression to higher leagues. This not
only brings benefits for the club, its players, sport in general and the county borough, but the
adoption of the principles enables the Local Authority to protect assets.

1.3 The report outlined some guiding principles which will assist in decision making and provide
clarity for sporting organisations when considering applications for transfer of playing fields
and or pavilions.

1.4 The Scrutiny Committee discussed the report and implementation of the principles at length
and sought clarification around the implementation of barriers on pitches within parks across
the borough and whether this would be feasible, as it could limit public access to spaces and
hinder wellbeing. Officers explained that there are concerns from a number of clubs for dog
fouling on pitches, however, barriers are often single pole barriers, which are used for crowd
control during fixtures and are not obstructive for public access, however, where a club has
requested to provide a stand for spectators, this has to be considered on merit, as often these
facilities can attract Anti-Social Behaviour and therefore further fencing is required, which is
not always suitable on all facilities.

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer's Report, the Scrutiny
Committee recommended that the following principles be adopted:

i) That the Council grant permission where it is appropriate to do so, for clubs to
install crowd control barriers (with or without infill panels to exclude dogs);

i) Where there is an overly restrictive covenant placed on the playing field or
building, the Council will be precluded from entering into lease or licence
agreements with clubs;

iii) That the Council will only accept applications form clubs, where they are at
least eighteen months away from commencing within a new league structure
for example, Welsh League in Football and either the WRU Championship or
Premiership in rugby. Any application must be accompanied by a robust
business case and a non-refundable fee of £500 to cover initial legal costs and

Page 7



Author:

Appendices:
Appendix 1

Vi)

vii)

viii)

officer's time. Additionally, where relevant, the club will be liable for advertising
costs as set out within The Playing Fields (Community Involvement in Disposal
Regulations) (Wales) 2015, which can be in excess of £4,000. To this end,
pre-application discussions with officers are encouraged;

That the Council grant preferred user status where it is appropriate to do so, to
such clubs who are registered as Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASC'’s);

That officers review the booking process and continue to explore development
opportunities at 3G pitches to facilitate those clubs in the higher leagues un
meeting their league requirements;

That playing fields and other facilities held on charitable trust have different
governance arrangements and will need to be the subject of a separate
decision making process;

That where management agreements are granted, responsibility for statutory
testing and maintenance (within buildings) and grounds maintenance will be
retained by the Council and recharged to the club as part of the agreement;

That the Authority will continue to honour existing leases, where the clubs are
fully compliant with the terms of the lease;

That all applications will be subject to a discussion, to highlight any potential
issues, between relevant officers will engage the relevant local members and
Cabinet Member at the earliest stage in the application process and will
determine the most appropriate method for consultation with residents in
conjunction with the relevant local member(s). The views of local member(s)
will be taken into account in the decision making process set out in the
Council's Constitution. Where the ultimate decision is to refuse any application
for asset transfer then the decision will be communicated as the decision of the
Council and will not be attributed to the views of any individual members;

That any exception to this set of principles is brought before Cabinet for a
decision.

Charlotte Evans, Committee Services Officer — evanscal@caerphilly.gov.uk

Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee Report — 14th May 2019

Page 8



APPENDIX 1

N
CAERPHILLY

COLUINTY BORODUGH COOLFINCIE
CYNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIRDL

CAERFFILY
4

ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
— 14TH MAY 2019

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFER PRINCIPLES (PLAYING FIELDS)

REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To seek the views of the Scrutiny Committee on the adoption of a set of guiding principles in
relation to the transfer of playing fields to sporting organisations prior to the presentation to
Cabinet for a decision.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 The Council is receiving an increasing number of applications from sports clubs to lease
facilities (sports fields and/or pavilions). To date, the general ethos is that the Council would
support clubs ambitions (on an ad-hoc basis); however in the absence of any guiding
principles and for the reasons set out in the body of this report, this is becoming increasingly
difficult. The Council is committed, where possible, to provide assistance to clubs to become
more sustainable and enable their development and progression to higher leagues. This not
only brings benefits for the club, its players, sport in general and the county borough, but the
adoption of the principles enables us to protect our assets.

2.2 This report sets out some guiding principles which will assist in decision making and provide
clarity for sporting organisations when considering applications for transfer of playing fields
and or pavilions.

2.3 The views of the Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny are sought on the guiding principles
prior to a report being presented to Cabinet for a decision.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 The views of the scrutiny committee are sought prior to submission to Cabinet in relation to
the following set of principles relevant to applications for the transfer of playing fields to

sporting organisations:

1. That the Council grant permission where it is appropriate to do so, for clubs to install
crowd control barriers (with or without infill panels to exclude dogs).

2. Where there is an overly restrictive covenant placed on the playing field or building,
the Council will be precluded from entering into lease or licence agreements with
clubs.

Page 9



4.1

5.1

5.2

10.

That the Council only accept applications from clubs, where they are at least eighteen
months away from commencing within a new league structure for example, Welsh
League in Football and either the WRU Championship or Premiership in rugby. Any
application must be accompanied by a robust business case and a non-refundable fee
of £500 to cover initial legal costs and officer’s time. Additionally, where relevant, the
club will be liable for advertising costs as set out within The Playing Fields (Community
Involvement in Disposal Regulations) (Wales) 2015, which can be in excess of £4,000.
To this end, pre-application discussions with officers are encouraged.

That the Council grant preferred user status where it is appropriate to do so, to such
clubs who are registered as Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASC'’s).

That officers review the booking process and continue to explore development
opportunities at 3G pitches to facilitate those clubs in the higher leagues in meeting
their league requirements.

That playing fields and other facilities held on charitable trust have different
governance arrangements and will need to be the subject of a separate decision
making process.

That where management agreements are granted, responsibility for statutory testing
and maintenance (within buildings) and grounds maintenance will be retained by the
Council and recharged to the club as part of the agreement.

That the Authority will continue to honour existing leases, where the clubs are fully
compliant with the terms of the lease.

That all applications will be subject to a discussion, to highlight any potential issues,
between relevant officers, the relevant Cabinet members and local Members. In this
context, officers will engage the relevant local members and Cabinet Member at the
earliest stage in the application process and will determine the most appropriate
method for consultation with residents in conjunction with the relevant local
member(s). The views of local member(s) will be taken into account in the decision
making process set out in the Council’s constitution. Where the ultimate decision is to
refuse any application for asset transfer then the decision will be communicated as the
decision of the Council and will not be attributed to the views of any individual
members.

That any exception to this set of principles is brought before Cabinet for a decision.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To have a clear set of principles which will determine how applications from sporting
organisations will be managed going forward. Clear principles will ensure equal treatment of
all potential applicants and consistent decision making.

THE REPORT

At its meeting held on the 17" October 2000, Cabinet formally approved a standard policy in
relation to rents and recreational leases. This is set out within paragraph 4.2, 4.3 and 4.5 of
the report, which is attached as Appendix 1.

In 2013, Property Services prepared draft protocols for the transfer of recreational assets, a
copy of which is attached as Appendix 2.

Page 10



5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

The council recognises the way its physical assets are managed can have a positive impact
on the long term strength of local communities. Through asset “ownership”, sporting clubs
and associations can grow and become more secure and gain access to sources of external
funding that the council is not able to take advantage of.

It has however become clear that over time there are conflicting aspirations in relation to the
transfer of playing fields. Rugby and football clubs in particular are unable to progress to the
higher leagues unless they can demonstrate compliance with Welsh Rugby Union (WRU) or
Football Association of Wales (FAW) criteria (for ease a copy of the FAW criteria is attached
as Appendix 3). Clubs often require a lease (which confers exclusive occupation upon the
tenant) to enable them to draw down funding. Officers have attempted to safeguard the
council in such leases/licences by insisting the lease/licence permits free and open public
access. However, the enclosure of a site by perimeter fencing and admission of the public
only when permitted by the tenant (whether or not a charge is made for entry to the site) can
sometimes contravene the basis on which assets are held by the council where there is a
“public recreational use” restriction.

It has also become clear that the council has previously responded to applications for leases
from sports clubs (who wish to apply for external funding streams) in isolation from any
strategic consideration of the council’'s own aims and objectives.

Not only should a proposal align to the council’s wellbeing agenda, but officers must also
ensure that the way in which assets are managed underpins corporate aims and only where
appropriate will the council use asset transfer as a means of supporting sporting
organisations. In this context, clubs are directed to facilities such as the Centre of Sporting
Excellence where such facilities are available. However, this may be problematic due to
Welsh League football rulings concerning the number of clubs playing within the same league
structure from a particular venue.

In addition, some leases may be considered as business tenancies, which have statutory
protection but may be terminated on specific grounds (for example on the basis that the
council wishes to provide generally available public recreation facilities). Members may wish
to consider these matters as exceptions.

Officers are currently developing a policy and protocol for Community Asset Transfer (CAT).
This report will be presented to members for consideration once it has been developed fully.

However, the transfer of playing fields (and associated changing rooms/pavilions) has a
number of particular challenges:-

(1) Resource implications to comply with The Playing Fields (Community Involvement in
Disposal Decisions Regulations) (Wales) Regulations 2015. However, if the majority
of applications are to be considered as either preferential user or management
agreements, the Regulations will not apply.

(2) Barriers to informal use of playing fields. Fences, even with a gate, sometimes gives
the impression of excluding the general public.

3) Grandstands and other facilities are sometimes required to progress through
WRU/FAW leagues.

(4) Some playing fields are held on charitable trust. Any decision regarding them must be
taken “considering only what is in the best interest of the charity”. It is unlikely that
letting the facility at an undervalue can ever be considered “in the best interest of the
charity”. Members should note that sites held on charitable trust are outside the scope
of this report and any decision will be considered separately by Cabinet, sitting as
trustees.

Page 11



5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

7.1

7.2

Members have previously considered a proposal to exclude dogs from all Council owned
marked sports/playing fields and a review is being undertaken with a view to reporting the
current position to members for further consideration. Recognising the legitimate concerns in
relation to dog fouling on playing fields (in particular those fields on which organised fixtures
are played) it would seem appropriate to grant permission to clubs consenting to the
installation of crowd control barriers (with or without infill panels to exclude dogs) and granting
preferred user status to such clubs who have registered as Community Amateur Sports Clubs.
Preferred user agreements allow clubs to have priority use of the playing field over other clubs
across the county borough. However, this does not convey upon the club(s) any
management or maintenance responsibilities.

Some clubs have requested management agreements for both playing fields and pavilions.
Requests for such agreements in relation to pavilions should be judged on their individual
merits as opening/closing and cleaning is more cost effective when directly undertaken by a
club as part of a management agreement. However, provision would need to be made to
accommodate other users.

Management agreements for opening/closing and cleaning pavilions will be offered to such
clubs who have registered as Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASC's); bookings will
continue to be managed by the Parks and Countryside Operations Service.

Where a club enters into a management agreement, the consideration will be a peppercorn
rent and the managing club will have a preferred user status for both the pavilion and the
associated playing field. Responsibility for statutory testing and maintenance (within the
building) and grounds maintenance will be retained by the authority and recharged to the club
as part of the agreement.

Conclusion

In the current financial climate, it is acknowledged that the Council has limited financial
resources to improve playing fields and changing room provision. Whilst our ethos is to get
more people, more active, more often, the adoption of a set of guiding principles will allow
officers to work closely with sports clubs to reach their aspirations, obtain grant funding to
improve facilitates (which we as a Council cannot access) and subsequently protect our
assets for future generations. This also aligns with the principles set out within the Council's
adopted Sport and Active Recreation Strategy.

ASSUMPTIONS
In preparing this report, the following assumption has been made:-

e In para 3.5, that a number of teams playing from the Centre of Sporting Excellence is
acceptable to the relevant bodies (WRU/FAW).

LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES

The recommendations in this report contribute to the following wellbeing goals within the
Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015:

e A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language;
e A More Equal Wales;
e A Healthier Wales.

At its meeting on 14™ November 2018, Cabinet approved the Sport & Active Recreation
Strategy. The strategy sets out the Council’s future purpose and direction for the provision of
sport and active recreation across the county borough over the next ten years. This includes
a commitment to working closely with community sports clubs and governing bodies, assisting
them to become bigger, stronger and more sustainable through facility improvements.

Page 12



7.3

7.4

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

111

11.2

In 2015, Cabinet approved a review of existing outdoor recreation and leisure facilities. The
review focused on equipped play provision, sports pitches, allotments and amenity green
space. This will ensure that any future funding is channelled into identified gaps in provision.

Corporate Plan 2018-2023.

The contents of this report contributes to the Corporate Well-being objective 5 — creating a
county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with the sustainable
development principle within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

This report contributes to the wellbeing goals as set out within the Links to Strategy section
above:-

(1) A Healthier Wales - creating a society in which people’s physical and mental wellbeing
is maximised and in which choices and behaviours that benefit future health are
understood.

(2 A More Equal Wales — creating a society that enables people to fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or circumstances.

3 A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language — creating a society that
promotes and protects culture, heritage and the welsh language and which
encourages people to participate in the arts and sport and recreation.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

An Equalities Impact Assessment screening has been completed in accordance with the
Council’s Strategic Equality Plan and supplementary guidance. No potential for unlawful
discrimination and/or low level or minor negative impact has been identified; therefore a full
Equalities Impact Assessment has not been carried out.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications associated with this report however there could be
potential future Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) savings from entering into such
agreements.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

In relation to paragraph 5.11 of this report, should a club request a management agreement,
which include the pavilion, there maybe personnel implications associated with that request as
we currently employ Pavilion Attendants to open, close, clean and ensure the building is
secured, when fixtures are booked. However, some of these staff are engaged via an
employment agency and those who are employed directly by the Council could be allocated to
an alternative facility.

In addition to the above, a potential staff resource implication has been identified in paragraph
5.9 (1) of this report.

Page 13



12. CONSULTATIONS

12.1 This report has been sent to all the listed consultees below and all responses have been
reflected within this report.

13. STATUTORY POWER

13.1 Local Government Act 2000.

14. URGENCY

14.1 The decision is not urgent and is subject to the call in procedure.

Author:

Consultees:

Appendices:

Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3

Michael Headington, Green Spaces & Transport Services Manager
(headim@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Mark S. Williams, Interim Corporate Director - Communities
(willims@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Robert Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection, Community & Leisure Services
(hartsr@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services and Acting 151
Officer

Mark Williams, Interim Head of Property Services (willim17@caerphilly.gov.uk)
Councillor Nigel George, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood Services
(georgn@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Councillor Lisa Phipps, Cabinet Member for Homes and Places
(JonesL1@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Richard Crane, Principal Solicitor (cranerk@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services (donovi@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer - Equalities & Welsh Language
(cullima@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/Monitoring Officer
(trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk)

M. Eedy, Finance Manager (eedymp@caerphilly.gov.uk)

J. Reynolds, Sports & Leisure Facilities Manager (reynoj@caerphilly.gov.uk)
J. Lougher, Sports & Leisure Development Manager (loughj@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Recreational leases to outside bodies
Protocols for the transfer of Recreational Assets
FAW / WRU Criteria

Page 14


mailto:headim@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:willims@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:georgn@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:JonesL1@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:cranerk@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:donovl@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:eedymp@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:reynoj@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:loughj@caerphilly.gov.uk

APPENDIX 1

- ——  —  AGENDAITEM NO.4(2)

CABINET — 17TH OCTOBER 2000

SUBJECT: RECREATIONAL LEASES TO OUTSIDE BODIES

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND LEISURE

1.1

2.1

S22

23

3.1

3.2

(@)

PURPOSE

To consider and establish a policy for Caerphilly County Borough Council in respect of the
rent charged for recreational leases that apply to local sports clubs and associations. (Private,

Professional or Commercial enterprises will be subject to separate negotiations and leasing

arrangements).

BACKGROUND
The County Borough Council has a significant number of recreational leases.

These have been inherited mainly from 4 of the former constituent authorities and from new
leases operational from 1996.

Sports clubs are rooted in their local communities and perform a valuable function within
local sporting networks, ensuring that development activities take place and that participants

have the opportunity to progress and excel.

Most of these relate to areas of land upon which buildings and other facilities have been
developed, although some relate to buildings in respect of which the lessors have full or
partial maintenance responsibilities. Some present leases have provision for rent reviews
whereas others do not.

Members will be aware that Cabinet on the 27th June, 2000, and at Council on 3rd August,
2000, a policy was adopted in relation to ground leases to outside bodies. That particular
policy document did not cover the groups that are referred to in this policy document.

ACTION REQUIRED

In the interests of fairness and equity and in order to achieve a consistent approach across the
whole Caerphilly County Borough Council area for those leases that have review clauses and
for any new leases, it is suggested that it would be advantageous to adopt a formal policy for

its recreational leases.

The present County Borough Council’s policy is to lease land and property used for
recreational purposes at less than the commercial market rental value because:
most of these leases are to voluntary community based clubs and organisations that do not

have substantial revenue income;

Page 15




(b)

©

3.3

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

4.2

most of the leased property provides valuable facilities for use by the local community at
little or no cost to the local authority, except occasional or pump-priming assistance in the
form of grants, advice and help in kind;

the management of these facilities is vested in community based clubs or organisations, hence
decisions about their future development and control are taken at local level within their
respective communities. The Council exercises a degree of control through the terms and

conditions of the individual leases.

If a decision is taken to seek a commercial market revenue for any new recreational leases,
leases which are now the responsibility of the County Borough Council which have review
clauses, it would have a severely detrimental effect upon a number of the clubs and
organisations and would create a system which favoured some lessees and penalised others.

There is dispensation for local authorities to lease recreational land and property at less than
market rental under the Local Government Act 1972: General Disposal Consent 1998.

Some existing leases have a set annual rental with no provision for review. In these cases the
lessee will continue to pay the same annual rental for each year throughout the lease term.

In other cases the lease has been granted subject to “the Council’s prevailing rent policy in
relation to recreational leases”. This allows the Council to review the rent at periodic
intervals, e.g., every 3, 5 or 7 years. The benefits of this arrangement are that the Council
will receive increased, albeit small scale, revenue income from recreational leases on an
ongoing basis, where the lessee can be sure of their annual rent commitment over a given
period. Whilst it is a matter for the Council to set the rent level at each review it is less likely
that the Council will act in an unreasonable manner if it decides to link the rent increase into
an existing mechanism such as the retail price index. In this way the rent payable for
recreational leases will increase in line with inflation.

In the majority if not all recreational leases there is a clause which does not permit the lessee
to assign the lease or sub-let any part of the land without the prior written consent of the
Council in its capacity as landlords.

STANDARBDISATION OF TERMS

It is proposed that a recreational lease policy is adopted along similar lines to those
recreational leases presently granted, but the policy is more clearly defined than at present
and that the criteria for determining lease rentals is clear and prescriptive.

It is proposed that:-

(a)  the proposed rent level of £50 per annum, per acre or part thereof, in relation to land
and/or buildings leased for recreational purposes, be agreed. These rates to be
charged to clubs/organisations on the basis of their purpose, funding/ability to raise
funds, as set out below:

Non profit making groups and organisations offering community/social benefits;

Groups reliant on locally raised funds;

Bona fide clubs affiliated to national affiliated bodies.

Page 16




4.3

4.4

4.5

This does not include those clubs which are professional, private or commercial, €.g., premier

rugby clubs affiliated to the Welsh Rugby Union.

(b)  aleased term of 10 years is proposed for all new leases and renewals. Where
organisations meet the requirements of funding bodies, it is proposed that the longer

lease be granted of the minimum period required. In such cases the extended lease
would be granted subject to confirmation of scheme funding,

(©) the rental charge in respect of any new leases be subject to review every 5 years;
(d)  all recreational rent reviews be increased in line with the retail price index.

_The-following standard.terms.should be included together with any specific terms required by
the Head of Legal Services in relation to individual sites:

Concessions - £50 per annum/per acre or part thereof

Market Rental - assessed by Valuer
(Far private, commercial and professional organisations).

User Clause:
Restriction of use of the land to the purpose indicated by the applicants for purpose of the

organisation.

Restriction preventing development or alteration of the land without landlord’s consent.

The tenants would be required to covenant to:-

1. pay the appropriate rent;

2. pay rates and any other outgoings;

3. pay for all utility services consumed and meter charges;

4. keep the property in a good state of repair;

5. not to assign, under-let, or part with possession of part or the whole of the property
without the landlord’s prior written consent which shall not be unreasonably withheld;

6. maintain and repair all buildings and grounds fit for purpose of use;

7. meet any other costs associated with the undertaking of a lease.

The Council as landlord would covenant to::-

1. grant the tenant peaceful enjoyment of the property;
2. to re-enter in the event of non-payment of rent or other fundamental breach of lease

terms, insolvency of the tenant, or cessation of use of the property by the tenant.

In the current economic climate the rent levels suggested represent a relatively modest
increase, although a decrease in some of the rentals presently charged. In this way it can be
seen that the Council is helping to assist local sports clubs and recreational organisations
which make a valuable contribution to the quality of life for local residents.

It is proposed that the new rent levels, if agreed, should become operational immediately.

Page 17




5. FINANCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1  The financial implications arising from the report are difficult to quantify in that it is difficult
to forecast the potential loss of income from facilities from which there is presently a charge
and the savings from maintenance which are presently met by the Council for those facilities.

52  In the process of negotiating future leases, there may be, in certain circumstances, a need to
grant aid organisations to enable them to maintain their facilities, in particular those facilities
that are expensive to maintain. Itis proposed that a proportion of the present maintenance
budget could be used for grant aid in these circumstances.

A more detailed analyses of these issue will be the subject of a future report on grounds
maintenance.

W
W

6. RECOMMENDATION

The information on recreational leases is noted and that the standard Council policy be
established on rents policy on recreational leases the details of which to be agreed as set out
in paragraphs 4.2, 4.3 and 4.5.

Author: Peter Gomer, Head of Lifelong Learning & Leisure
Consultees: John Rogers, Legal Services
Martin Lennon, Property Services

This recommendation is endorsed by Corporate Management Team.

Page 18




APPENDIX 2

APPENDIX 2 PROTOCOLS FOR THE TRANSFER OF RECREATIONAL

* ASSETS

PREAMBLE

T4

It should be noted that some recreation grounds have been dedicated for public
recreation and may have covenants restricting their use to public recreation, or
reverter clauses whereby the land reverts to the original owner in the event that
the public use ceases; in other case land is held under charitable trust. There
are four classifications of recreafional assets.

CLASSIFICATIONS OF RECREATIONAL ASSETS

12

13

1.4

1.1.1 RECREATIONAL ASSETS HELD ON CHARITABLE TRUSTS.
Assets and resources held in this way can, and must, be used only to
further the charity's aims; the management of such assets must be to
support or further that purpose. .

1.1.2 RECREATIONAL ASSETS SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS
Some recreation grounds may have been dedicated for public recreation
and may have covenants restricting their use to public recreation. In
such circumstances Asset Transfer might be a breach of that legal
obligation.

1.1.3 RECREATIONAL ASSETS SUBJECT TO REVERTER CLAUSES.
Some recreation grounds may have been dedicated for public recreation
and may have reverter clauses whereby the land reverts to the original
owner in the event that the public use ceases.

1.1.4 PuBLIC OPEN SPACE ; =
Those that are unencumbered, that is to say the Council owns the
freehold and there are no restrictions on its title. Nonetheless the
Council has a degree of constraint on its actions since Public Open
Space cannot be sold or transferred without advertising the intention to
do so and having regard to any objections that are made.

The Council has previously responded to applications for asset transfers from
sporting clubs and associations that have wished to apply for external funding
in isolation both from one another, and from any strategic consideration of the
Council's own aims and objectives. *~

Officers have attempted to safeguard the Council in these transfers against
breaches of restrictive covenant by requiring the transferee to permit the public
access: however, the enclosure of a site by fencing and admission of the public
only when permitted by the tenant (whether or not a charge is made for entry to
sites) contravene the basis on which assets have been held by the Council
where there is a public recreational use clause.

That the council has, in the past, been party to such ambiguousness is
sustainable only in the absence of a policy or Protocol governing the
management of recreational assets.

Page 19



Page 20



PRESUMPTION

The Council will not agree to the transfer of a recreational asset unless it
can be shown that such a transfer is in the better public interest

1. One of the Council's Corporate Priorities is to promote and support health &
well-being; recreational assets provide space and opportunities for recreation
and contribute to the well-being of local communities, helping to underpin this
priority. There is an extensive network of provision across the County Borough.

2. The Council also recognises the way its physical assets are managed can have a
positive impact on the long-term strength of local communities. Through asset
ownership, sporting clubs and associations can grow and become more secure,
gaining access to sources of additional funding that the Council itself may not be
able to access.

3. However, the Council must ensure that the way assets are managed underpins
wider corporate aims and only where appropriate will the Council use asset
transfer as a means of supporting sporting clubs and associations.

4. For any application to succeed, it must satisfy the appropriate protocol overleaf.

Page 21



PROTOCOLS

A RECREATIONAL ASSETS HELD ON CHARITABLE TRUSTS

Al

A2

Before any transfer proposal can be considered, the purpose of the charity
must be defined and the proposal weighed against, and only against, that
purpose

The question to be posed is: “Does the proposal support or further the identified
charitable purpose?’
If “Yes” how? A Business Case will be required from the Applicant

If “No”, will a cash sum (capital or revenue) be generated that can be used to
support or further that purpose?

If the Council, as charitable trustee, is minded to progress the application, refer
to Sales, leases, transfers or mortgages... (Charity Commission website) (See
also Appendix 1 Summary Decision Chart for assets held on Charitable Trusts)

N.B.
i. Ifthe asset is “designated land” and is not to be replaced, specific consent
may be needed from the Charity Commission.

ii. The “usual” consultation rules under the “PrROTOCOL FOR DISPOSAL OF
ProPERTY” will not automatically apply to such a disposal

B RECREATIONAL ASSETS SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

B.1

B.2

B.3

Before any transfer proposal can be considered, the nature of the restriction
must be defined and the proposal weighed against it.

The question to be posed is: “Would the proposal be in breach of that
restriction?”

If it would, the Council must determine whether the proposal supports or
furthers its own strategic aims and corporate priorities, and whether it wishes to
seek a relaxation or removal of the covenant.

If the proposal supports or furthers those strategic aims and corporate priorities
a Business Case will be required from the Applicant

If the proposal does not support or further those strategic aims and corporate
priorities will a cash sum (capital or revenue) be generated that can be used fo
support or further them?

If the Council is minded to progress the application, the “usual” consultation
rules under the “Protocol for Disposal of Property” will apply to such a disposal

Page 22



C RECREATIONAL ASSETS SUBJECT TO REVERTER CLAUSES

CA

c.z2

Before any transfer proposal can be considered, the nature of the dedication
must be defined and the proposal weighed against it.

The question to be posed is: “Would the proposal be in breach of that
restriction?”

If it would, the Council must determine whether the proposal supports or
furthers its own strategic aims and corporate priorities, and whether it wishes to
seek a waiver of the reversion from the Grantor. In such instances, the original
owner may require a cash settlement that may have regard to a relaxation of
the purpose behind the dedication, or may represent the full market value of the
land.

If the proposal supports or furthers those strategic aims and corporate priorities
a Business Case will be required from the Applicant

If the proposal does not support or further those strategic aims and corporate
priorities will a cash sum (capital or revenue) be generated that can be used fo
support or further them?

The terms of the waiver referred fo in paragraph C.2 above will inform the
decision-making process

C.3If the Council is minded to progress the application, the “usual” consuitation

rules under the “PrRoTOCOL FOR DisPosAL OF PROPERTY” will apply to such a
disposal

The flowchart at Appendix 2 will assist the process

D RECREATIONAL ASSETS OTHERWISE FREE FROM RESTRICTIONS

D.1

D.2

D.3

D.4

(PuBLic OPEN SPACE)

Does the transfer proposal support or further the Council’s strategic aims and
corporate priorities?

If it would, the Applicant must produce a Business Case to show how the
proposal supports or furthers those strategic aims and corporate priorities

If the proposal does not support or further those strategic aims and corporate
priorities will a cash sum (capital or revenue) be generated that can be used to
support or further them?

If the Council is minded to progress the application, the “usual” consultation
rules under the “Protocol for Disposal of Property” will apply to such a disposal

The flowchart at Appendix 2 will assist the process

Page 23



DEFINITIONS
ASSET TRANSFER

CHARITABLE TRUST

DESIGNATED LAND

PuBLIC OPEN SPACE

RECREATIONAL ASSET

is defined as a disposal to a person or other legal entity under the terms
of a lease for more than 7 (seven) years

is a form of express trust dedicated to charitable goals. There are a
variety of advantages to charitable trust status, including exception from
most forms of tax and freedom for the trustees not found in other types
of English trust. To be a valid charitable trust, the organisation must
demonstrate both a charitable purpose and a public benefit.

sometimes referred to as 'specie land', is required by the charity's
governing document to be used for a particular purpose of the charity

is defined in 336 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990as any
land laid out as a public garden or used for the purposes of public
recreation, or land that is a disused burial ground.

Areas of unmaintained wasteland will fall within the definition if they are
in fact used for informal public recreation.

is defined, in this Protocoal, as a playing field (or fields) with associated
changing rooms and/or pavilions operated by the Council, and open to
use by individuals and groups from within the County Borough.

RESTRICTIVE COVENANT is a legal obligation imposed in a deed by the seller upon the buyer not

to do something. Such restrictions "run with the land" and are
enforceable on subsequent buyers of the property.

Page 24



{This page is intentionally blank}

Page 25



1
oN

[
oumpind sty w1 o uopas. ampind siy jo g uoges 235 - b
iﬁlulﬁhﬁﬁ!“ﬂﬂﬁﬂ _..si.__all!llit. ’ u pus) jo [esodsip jo 3di} o fuy -
» safy s paulyap 58 fesodsip @ su passep 3q ou Aew uomdesues mey o - P
mETTRSII  ewemesdincr.
R e O e Y
ol ssaqun [esodsip 3y asRAApe - spek O Rjot Jog A Y -
_ o R © FpIRUS P HOKD - !..._.I_l.:..._llﬂ_ e
“pus] 3 jo Bursodsip Aipyes 319 nok jy) SRS 34 0 3RNSSe 3P0 - sy ey Esodsp ag) 5]
; ) pus Apmip 3 jo
ssaE jfl.al.’i‘dllla -iillu._llli S
asodsp 0} Guisodoid 350 AOA puUs] 4 30 ANOA kg o 9ap; pood @ anay -
i nok waep ym Buskiduses Aq yaq sjususnnba) By 3 asayy LM —— ouepind st j0) Logaes 33
gl
s a0 nok 3p3p - - 53, — cwnawaid 10 a1y ou g 553
e g s 1o oy 0 sk £ o) asem @ fesodeep ey
353 Lo - nof 3npa of 3ouayadns
PR Aio t) (i, omuE
nsnuw nog _
| Lﬂ»ﬂﬁﬂiﬂﬂ-ﬂmmrﬂuﬂﬂu x40 3 o0 v - paun o4 R L ..
e e T e S Lo T e T
ugusns1ou 53k e ok 1o sorodm 3 o} o pus] Jo Bsodp 50 10 10y 0 0 0> o) pasu Ao oy R e
“apis 74 0 |3 ORIRS 05 K. sy frp bl este
A g uofoesuel jap Rgaboy 335 - sUosjad PRI 0f SpRsOdsp . ._I:.i. 5 Ay
1o osaBove sk waee o o _zunmr_. e S0 0 S0 i ol oot %~y o - b g
iiiiixuﬂia& iy Apanef 218 253y) pue .,.l.]!lll.j. oy e e o
341 0} 09 50 Wy 5apIO Ve Pa3u o} B o o i
3
P A F0GNG 0 J3pK) US e L T
194 nod ‘ysswrnop Buiijaeel 2y U amod @ 10 Jamod ‘a4 o 2] 300080 -; Ay ——— . aoui gy o, . —osodap g o pimoop Sukimod
NoA UST3] AR WS i-i}il. OIS 30 3R !uﬂ!ilﬂﬂ.“ ‘ljkm-fﬁiﬂ“-lﬂ
nopoyp A op Aym P 0) paau noA op Jeym uonen)is oA s jeym

SLSNy | IT9V.LRHNVYHD NO 3H S13SSY H04 LUVHD NOISIOAJ AYVININNG
| @xauuy

Page 26



Annexe 2
FLOWCHART FOR RESTRICTIONS OTHER THAN CHARITABLE TRUSTS

Reject application G —————

'Will a cash sum {(capital or
revenue) be generated that
can be used to support or
further those purposes?

Does the proposal
support or further the
Council's strategic
aims and corporate
priorities?

Is the proposal in
breach of any
resiriction?

Is the benafit to the
Council sufficient to
warrant it seeking to
remove the
resinction?

v

Valid

o - eprES—

Page 27



Page 28



APPENDIX 3

FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION OF WALES

TIER 2 GROUND CRITERIA REGULATIONS

1 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017,

Page 29



Introduction

Procedure

Governing Body

Applicant

Infrastructure Criteria

Appendices

Page

10
13
18

21

(&)

Version 1.2

FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29™ April 2015 and

updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 30



Glossary of Terms

Note — Definitions are also contained in the FAW’s “Articles of Association”, “Standing Orders” and
“Regulations™ (including, without limitation, the Regulations for the Pyramid League System) and

cross-references are noted where appropriate.

Applicant

Chief Executive Officer

Core Process

Council

Club

Club Licensing Appeals Body

Deadline for Submissions

Decision Making Bodies

FAW

FAW National Game Board

First Instance Body

Ground

Ground Criteria

DEFINITION

The Club applying to the FAW for assessment against
the Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations.

The senior employee of the FAW,

Minimum requirements that the FAW has to put in
place for verification of compliance with the criteria
described in the Regulations as basis for the issuance
of Tier 2 Certification to an Applicant.

The supreme executive body of the FAW.

Any club playing at Tier 2 of the FAW Pyramid and
any club seeking promotion to Tier 2.

The appeals board appointed by the FAW to deal with
an appeal by an Applicant or the FAW against a
decision of the First Instance Body.

The date by which the Applicants must submit to the
FAW, all documents and evidence in support of their
Application for Tier 2 Certification.

The First Instance Body and the Club Licensing
Appeals Body.

The Football Association of Wales Limited.

The FAW committee of the Council responsible for
Tier 1-4 of the FAW Pyramid.

The board appointed by the FAW to assess Applicants
and decide whether or not to grant the Applicant Tier
2 Certification.

Means the venue where the Applicant will play its
home matches in domestic competitions including,
but not limited to, all properties and facilities near to
such stadium (for example offices, hospitality areas.)

The infrastructure criteria for the Ground set out or
referred to in section 5 of these Regulations, as
amended by the FAW from time to time.

Version 1.2

FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and

updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 31



May

Must or Shall

Recommended

Significant Change

[Subsequent Events

Tier 2

Tier 2 Certification

Toolkit

[]

Indicates a party’s discretion to do something (i.e.
optional, rather than mandatory).

Indicates an obligation to do something (i.e.
mandatory). Failure to meet the obligation will result
in refusal to grant Tier 2 Certification.

This is a best-practice recommendation and therefore,
not Tier 2 Certification failure.

Means an event that is considered material to the
documentation previously submitted to the FAW and
that would require a different presentation if it had
occurred prior to the submission of the
documentation.

Events or conditions occurring after the grant of Tier
2 Certification.

The second Tier of the FAW Pyramid, being the Huws
Gray Alliance League and the Welsh Football League
Division 1.

The certification granted by a Decision Making Body
for the Applicant to play in Tier 2 of the FAW

Pyramid.

A resource produced by the FAW, which contains all
relevant templates and helpful documents to assist
Clubs in meeting the Ground Criteria.

Version 1.2

FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and

updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 32



1. Introducti

1.1 Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations

The Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations set out quality standards and procedures by which Clubs will
be assessed as a basis for continuous Ground improvement. It is a modern form of regulation.

The objective of a uniform Tier 2 criteria was first published in the FAW"s Strategic Plan of 2012. The
formation of the new National Game Board in September 2014 became the catalyst for the introduction
these Regulations. Following a series of taskforce meetings and ground audits, the first version of the
Tier 2 Regulations was written.

The National Game Board approved that version in its meeting on 13" April 2015, which was ratified
by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and updated to this version of the Regulations on 14" February
2017, which was ratified by Council on [ 12017.

From and including the start of season 2018/19, no Club shall be eligible to play in a Tier 2 league unless
they hold Tier 2 Certification.

n

Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 33



1.2 Benefits of Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations

The FAW sets the standards for Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations. By meeting these standards, football
as a whole is acknowledging its responsibility to the community at large. The auditing of these
Regulations are a transparent process that enables Clubs in particular to demonstrate to all their
stakeholders that they meet quality standards for their Ground.

These Regulations will help to establish benchmarking information. Clubs will be able to use this
information to establish their position and to plan future quality improvement.

FAW resources will be focused on assisting Clubs to meet their standards. Football will benefit from
the adoption of quality management practices by the FAW.

6 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 34



2. Procedure

2.1 The Management of the System

The Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations will be managed by the FAW for Tier 2 Clubs. The system will
comprise of audits conducted by the FAW and assessment by the Decision Making Bodies.

In order to demonstrate that it meets the Ground Criteria, a Club will make available, a series of Club
reports and supporting documents at the audit that will be conducted at a pre-agreed time with the Club
at its Ground. An action plan will be provided by the FAW, which will outline whether the Club
currently meets the Ground Criteria.

In considering a Club’s application, no Club will be permitted to make changes or further developments
to their Ground, nor submit any additional information, following the April 30® deadline.

Those Clubs that meet all of the mandatory ‘A’ Ground Criteria standards will be issued with Tier 2
Certification. Those Clubs that have not fulfilled the minimum mandatory ‘A’ Ground Criteria will not
be granted Tier 2 Certification.

The Deadline for the submission is 30% April annually.

The list of Tier 2 Certified Clubs must be communicated by the FAW to the Leagues’ concerned by 31%
May. This must be strictly adhered to annually, before the relevant League’s annual general meeting.

2.2 Tier 2 Ground Criteria Certification Refusal

Tier 2 Certification is mandatory for participation at Tier 2.
If a Club is refused Tier 2 Certification by the First Instance Body, the following procedure will apply:-

April A Club refused Tier 2 Certification must submit any appeal to the
Licensing Manager of the FAW within 10 days of being informed of
the First Instance Body’s decision. Appeals must be forwarded in
writing by recorded delivery mail for the attention of the Licensing
Manager of the FAW together with the appropriate Appeal Fee. The
Club Licensing Appeals Body is notified and a meeting date agreed.

April The Licensing Manager of the FAW prepares a report and dispatches
this to the Club Licensing Appeals Body.

April/May The Club Licensing Appeals Body considers the Applicant’s appeal by
31% May each year. The decision is made whether to grant Tier 2
Certification or not. If Tier 2 Certification is granted, any area for future
attention may be detailed. If Tier 2 Certification is refused, areas to be
addressed must be detailed.

2.3  Criteria Graduation

The Ground Criteria described in these Regulations are graded into two separate categories. The
different grades have been defined as follows:

Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29™ April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 35



‘A’ Criteria — Mandatory

If the Applicant does not fulfil any A-Criteria, then it cannot be granted Tier 2 Certification unless the
Decision Making Body grants an exemption (time limited to one season only) under 4.4 of these
Regulations.

‘B’ Criteria — Recommendation
If the Applicant does not fulfil any B-Criteria, then it will still receive Tier 2 Certification.

2.4 Development

This is a progressive system designed to deliver continuous improvement. Improvements will be
introduced as the system develops. The National Game Board has the authority to review criteria and
these recommendations will be referred to Council for approval following a consultation process with
various bodies including the relevant Leagues and its Clubs. The development process will incorporate
reasonable timescales and the Regulations will be reviewed at least every two years.

8 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 36



3.1

1.

2:

3.2

Responsibilities

The Football Association of Wales governs the Tier 2 Ground Criteria system.

In particular, the FAW must:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Establish an appropriate administration as defined in 3.2.

Establish a process for the decision-making as defined in 3.3.

Define the core process as defined in 3.5.

Assess the documentation submitted by the Clubs, consider whether this is appropriate and
determine whether each criterion has been met and what further information, if any, is
needed.

Ensure equal treatment of all Applicants and guarantee the Clubs full confidentiality with
regard to all information provided during the process as defined in 3.6.

Determine whether Tier 2 Certification can be granted.

Administration

1.

The administrative tasks of the FAW include:

a)
b)
c)

d)

Preparing, implementing and further developing the Tier 2 Ground Criteria system;
Providing administrative support to the Decision Making Bodies:

Assisting, advising and monitoring Applicants during the season; and

Informing the National Game Board of any event occurring after the Decision Making

Bodies have made their decisions that constitutes a Significant Change to the information
previously submitted.

3.3 Process for decision-making

2

Each Decision Making Body must be independent of the other.

The First Instance Body decides on whether Tier 2 Certification should be granted to an Applicant
on the basis of the documents provided by the submission deadline set by the FAW and on whether
Tier 2 Certification should be withdrawn.

Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 37



fad

The Club Licensing Appeals Body decides on appeals submitted in writing and makes the final

decision on whether a Tier 2 Certification should be granted or withdrawn.

4. Appeals may only be lodged by:

a)
b)
¢)

An Applicant who received a refusal from the First Instance Body;
An Applicant whose Tier 2 Certification has been withdrawn by the First Instance Body; or
The FAW.

5. The Club Licensing Appeals Body makes it decision based on the decision of the First Instance
Body and all evidence provided by the Applicant or the FAW with its written request for appeal and
by the set deadline.

6. Members of the Decision Making Bodies are appointed by the Chief Executive Officer and must:

a)
b)

c)
d)
e)

Act impartially in the discharge of their duties;

Abstain if there is any doubt as to their independence from the Applicant or if there is a
conflict of interest. In this connection, the independence of a member may not be guaranteed
if he/she or any member of his/her family (spouse, child, parent or sibling) is a member,
shareholder, business partner, sponsor or consultant of the Applicant;

Not act simultaneous as Licensing Manager of the FAW;

Not belong simultaneously to the Council or any of its affiliated leagues; and

Not belong simultaneously to the administrative staff of the FAW.

7. The quorum must be at least three members. In case of a tie, the Chairman has the casting vote.

8. The Decision Making Bodies must operate according to the following procedural rules:

a)
b)
c)

d)
€)
f)
g2

h)
i)
i)
k)

all deadlines as specified in the annual Core Process must be respected;

the principle of equal treatment;

legal representation can provide evidence to the Decision Making Bodies on behalf of the
Applicant:

the Applicant can provide evidence to the Decision Making Bodies;

meetings will be conducted in English;

extensions will not be permitted:

Applicants and the FAW will be given 10 days to lodge an appeal against the decision of
the First Instance Body;

Applicants will be allowed to submit their appeal evidence until the deadline stipulated in
the Core Process;

there is no cost to the Applicant for the First Instance Body:

the cost of the appeal is as per FAW Rule 43.2.3: and

the decision will be provided in writing to the Applicant with reasoning.

3.4 Sanctions

10

Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 38



The breach or abuse of these Regulations (including, without limitation, submission or
misleading or falsified documents or information by an Applicant) will be a Disciplinary
Offence under the FAW Rules and Section E of the FAW Rules shall apply.

3.5 Core Process

1. The FAW defines the Core Process in Appendix I for the verification of the Ground Criteria and thus
control the issuing of the Tier 2 Certification.

2. The Core Process starts on August 1% and ends on the submission of the list of decisions on May 31%
each season.

. The deadlines must be clearly defined at the beginning of the season and communicated to the
Clubs concerned in a timely manner.

L

3.6 Equal Treatment and confidentiality

I; The FAW ensures equal treatment of all Applicants during the Core Process.

2. The FAW guarantees the Applicants full confidentiality with regard to all information submitted
during the licensing process. Anyone involved in the licensing process or appointed by the FAW
must sign a confidentiality agreement before assuming their tasks.

11 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 39



4. Applicant

4.1 Definition of the Applicant

1. An Applicant may only be a football club, i.e. a legal entity fully responsible for a football team
participating in FAW competitions which either:

a. Is a registered member of the FAW and/or its affiliated league(s) (hereinafter: registered

member); or
b. Has a contractual relationship with a registered member,

4.2  General responsibilities of the Applicant

1. The Applicant must provide the FAW with:
a) All necessary information and/or relevant documents to fully demonstrate that the obligations
are fulfilled; and
b) Any other document relevant for decision-making.

2. This includes information on the reporting entity/entities in respect of which information is required
to be provided to satisfy the Ground Criteria.

3. Any event occurring after the submission of the documentation to the FAW representing a
Significant Change to the information previously submitted must be promptly notified to the FAW.

4.3 Certification

1. Clubs which qualify for Tier 2 on sporting merit from and including season 2018/19 onwards must
obtain Tier 2 Certification.

2

Tier 2 Certification expires without prior notice at the end of the season for which it was issued.
3. Tier 2 Certification cannot be transferred.
4. Tier 2 Certification may be withdrawn by the FAW if:

a) Any of the conditions for the issuing of the Tier 2 Certification are no longer satisfied; or
b) The Club violates any of its obligations under the Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations.

5. As soon as a Tier 2 Certification withdrawal is envisaged, the FAW administration must notify the
Chief Executive Officer.

12 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29™ April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 40



4.4 Clubs outside of Tier 2

1. Clubs relegated from the Welsh Premier League on sporting merit or for failure to achieve the
National Domestic Licence must meet the Ground Criteria of Tier 2 Certification, which will be
assessed at the same time as its application for a National Domestic Licence.

2. Clubs seeking promotion into Tier 2 may, using the application process in accordance with Appendix
11, seek extraordinary permission from the Decision Making Bodies to meet certain of the ‘A’
(Mandatory) Ground Criteria during the season immediately following the Club’s promotion to Tier
2. The Decision Making Bodies May grant such permission but if granted such permission shall
apply only for the said season.

13 Version 1,2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 41



5.1 INTRODUCTION

Club Licensing infrastructure criteria has been a catalyst for the essential development at a
number of Welsh Premier League grounds. The importance of a safe, comfortable and modern
Ground, offering a pleasurable experience to the player, official, spectator and sponsor should
mean that those individuals return time and time again.

Consequently. the development of infrastructure is of ultimate significance for the development
of Tier 2 Clubs.

In considering a Club’s application, no Club will be permitted to make changes or further
developments to their Ground Criteria following the April 30 deadline.

If it is brought to the attention of the Football Association of Wales that the Ground falls below
the minimum level required at any time during the season, an inspection must be carried out at
the earliest opportunity.

5.2 OBJECTIVES

The objective of the Ground Criteria are that Applicants have an approved Ground available
for playing Tier 2 league matches, which provides stakeholders with well equipped, well-
appointed and safe and comfortable stadia.

5.3 BENEFITS FOR CLUBS

Clubs and Ground owners can develop strategies to upgrade its facilities in order to meet the
relevant Ground Criteria. This approach allows the Ground owner in cooperation with the Club
to clearly plan and invest in missing requirements, which nowadays are necessary to host people
at attractive and entertaining events.

Therefore, each Club, together with the Ground owner and the local community, should try to
provide a Ground that is attractive, safe and secure, easily accessible by car (including parking
facilities) and/or public transport, has comfortable seats with a close view of the pitch, has clean
hospitality and refreshment facilities, is equipped with hygienic and spacious toilets for both
sexes and provides communication installations with public address systems.

The FAW shall inspect the Ground.

14 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 42



5.4 GROUND CRITERIA

Safety and Security

The Club shall prepare a report that will be inspected and verified on site at the audit and which
shall refer to the Safety and Security of the Ground and shall provide detailed information on
each of the sub-headings.

1.01 — Stadium Safety Risk Assessment and Evacuation Plan (A criteria)

1. The Applicant must provide a Stadium Safety Risk Assessment, which must include, but is not
limited to the requirements of the document provided in Appendix III.

2

The Applicant must provide a Safety Policy, which must include all of the Criteria as listed in 1.03
— ‘Public Access and Egress’.

3. The Applicant must have in place a Stadium Evacuation Plan, detailing all emergency exits, gates
and routes to evacuate the Ground.

4. All documents submitted for the [.01 criteria must be signed by an authorised signatory of the Club,
dated and be no older than two years old.

L.02 — Approved Capacity Level (A criteria)

1. The Applicant must have in place an approved capacity level, which is relevant and safe for all
competitions. The minimum capacity for Tier 2 Clubs is 750.

2. The Applicant must have in place at least 250 covered seats, which are in compliance with criteria
L15.
1.03 — Public Access and Egress (B criteria)

It is Recommended that the Applicant ensures the following is provided in the Ground and the relevant
documents provided for the audit:

1. At least two Turnstiles designed in such a way as to avoid congestion and ensure the smooth flow
of the crowd.

2. All public passageways and stairways in the spectator areas should be painted in a bright colour, as
must all gates leading from the spectator areas into the playing area and all exit doors and gates
leading out of the Ground.

3. All exit doors and gates in the Ground, and all gates leading from the spectator areas into the playing
area, should:

a) Be fitted with a locking device which may be operated simply and quickly by anyone from the
inside in the case of exit doors and gates or from either side in the case of gates leading into
the playing area;

b) Be designed to remain unlocked while spectators are in the Ground.

15 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 43



4. Approaches to the Ground should be adequately signposted to guide spectators to their sectors, and
all turnstiles, entry and exit gates and doors should be operational and similarly clearly indicated by
signs which are universally understood. Commercial signage and signage within Dressing Rooms
must also be on display.

5. Club should submit a Policy stating the procedure for all Players, Officials and Spectators when
entering the Ground. A policy must be in place if there is need for segregation.

6. The boundary wall/fence should be of sound solid construction, secure on all sides and designed to
obscure viewing from outside the Ground. (Recommended height of boundary structure is 2
metres).

7. The Club must submit a Layout Plan detailing all facilities within the Ground (1:1000) and a Site
Plan showing the Access Routes in to the Ground (1:1500)

1.04 — Public Address System (A criteria)

1. The Ground must be equipped with a public address system.

2. The public address system should cover both the inside and outside of the Ground and be
secured against failures of the main power supply.

Areas Relating to Players and Officials

The Club shall prepare a report that will be inspected at the audit and which shall refer to the
field of play and shall provide detailed information on each of the sub-headings.

1.05 — Field of Play (A criteria)

The field of play must be smooth and level.
1. The Ground must be equipped with either a natural playing surface or football turf.
2. Football turf must meet all of the following conditions:
a) It must have been granted the required FIFA licence in accordance with the FAW Regulations
for synthetic pitches;
b) It must meet all the requirements of the national legislation in force;

¢) Its surface must be green and marked with white lines.

3. The field of play must be equipped with a drainage system so that it cannot become unplayable due
to flooding.

4. The field of play should be 105 metres long and 68 metres wide. If this is not possible due to Ground
constraints, the minimum allowable is 98m long and 62 metres wide.

5. There must be a grass verge or alternatively artificial turf of the minimum width of 1.5 metres
between the touch line and the perimeter barrier. It is Recommended that this distance is 3 metres.

6. Barriers or emergency gates must surround the perimeter of the pitch.

16 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 44



L.06 — Warm-Up Area (A criteria)

A warm-up area for substitutes must be available along the touchlines, behind the advertising boards
behind the goal or on a separate area.

1.07 — Goals and Spare Goals (A / B criteria)

1. Goalposts and crossbars must be made out of aluminium or similar material and must be round
or elliptical. Moreover, they must be in compliance with the Laws of the Game as promulgated
by the International Football Association Board (IFAB), which means, in particular, that:

a) the distance between the posts must be 7.32m;

b) the distance from the lower edge of the crossbar to the ground must be 2.44m;
¢c) the goalposts and crossbars must be white;

d) they must not pose any danger to players. (A criteria)

0

A spare goal, which can be easily installed if the circumstances so require, should be available
within the Ground for League matches. (B criteria)

1.08 — Substitutes’ benches (A criteria)

a) The Ground must be equipped with two covered benches at pitch level, each with seating room
for at least 8 people and positioned either side of the Halfway Line. The two benches must be on
the same side as each other.

b) Any developments to the Substitutes benches, following the first inspection, must increase the
capacity to 13 people.

1.09 — Dressing Rooms (A criteria)

1 The Ground must be equipped with:
a) A dressing-room for each team with a minimum of four showers, seating room for at least 18
people and exclusive use, with private access to one individual seated toilet.

b) A referees’ dressing-room with a minimum of one shower, access to one exclusive individual
seated toilet and seating room for three people.

2 A Ground must guarantee a safe walkway for both teams and the referees from their dressing-rooms
to the playing area and ensure their safe arrival at/departure from the Ground.

1.10 — Match Day Office (B criteria)

The Ground should be equipped with a match-day office with access to communication facilities such
as phone and internet connection, located nearby and with easy access to the team and referees’ dressing
rooms.

17 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29t April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 45



1.11 — First Aid & treatment facilities (Players & Officials) (B criteria)

The Ground should be equipped with a dedicated room for first aid and medical treatment of players
and officials. The minimum equipment required is stated in Appendix IV.

LI12—- Flood_h'ghting (B criteria)

1. The Ground must be equipped with floodlight installations.

2

. The Ground floodlight lux levels must be in compliance with the following:

a) Achieve 250 lux when tested by an independent organisation.

b) Clubs will have to provide a report stating the lux value, which must be no more than three
years old, attaining a minimum of 250 lux.

c) Ifthe floodlights fall below 150 lux, they must be upgraded to 250 lux.

3. The FAW may at any time, request a 96-point lighting test to determine the current lux levels of the
floodlights.

1.13 — Parking Areas (A criteria)

1. Parking space for a minimum of one bus and ten cars must be made available for the teams and
officials.

2. This parking space must be located in a safe and secure area in the immediate vicinity of the players’
and officials’ area.

In addition there should be a minimum of 10 parking spaces available for VIP’s in a safe and secure
area.

Ll

1.14 — Refreshment Facilities (A criteria)

1. Clubs must provide Players and Match Officials with food and drink after the game. (A Criteria)

18 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29™ April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 46



Spectator-Related Areas

The Club shall prepare a report that will be inspected at the audit and which shall refer to the Club’s
procedures and practices with regard to spectators at its games.

1.15 — Stands and Spectator Facilities (A criteria)

L

(8]

Seats for spectators must be individual, fixed (e.g. to the floor), separated from one another, shaped,
made of an unbreakable and non-flammable material and have a backrest of a minimum height of
30 cm when measured from the seat.

The use of temporary stands is prohibited.

The Ground must be equipped with Refreshment and Catering facilities for all spectators in every
sector of the Ground.

Bench seating of any description is prohibited.

1.16 — Hardstanding (A/ B criteria)

1.

(39

There must be hardstanding surrounding one length and one width of the field of play,
compromising of concrete, paving stones or tarmac. (4 Criferia)

All mandatory Spectator Areas as defined in .15 — I. must be accessed by hardstanding.
(A Criteria)

Hardstanding of a temporary nature will not be approved under any circumstances. Where the
Ground is part of a larger sports complex, the football area must be totally enclosed from all other
activities. (4 Criteria)

It is Recommended that it is possible for spectators to be accommodated, either standing or seated,
for the full length of all four sides of the playing area, except where permission has been granted by
the League for one of the sides or part thereof, to be closed by Spectators. (B Criteria)

It is Recommended that hardstanding surrounds the whole of the field of play, compromising of
concrete, paving stones or tarmac. Hardstanding of a temporary nature will not be approved under
any circumstances. Where the Ground is part of a larger sports complex, the football area must be
totally enclosed from all other activities. (B Criteria)

It should be possible, if whenever, necessary to prevent spectators from moving from one sector or
sub-sector to another, except as part of the Ground’s evacuation process. (B Criteria)

1.17 - Visiting Supporters (A criteria)

L,

tJ

At least 5% of the total Ground capacity must be available exclusively for visiting supporters, and
where necessary, in a segregated area of the Ground.

Segregation requirements at specific matches shall be decided by the FAW in liaison with the local
authorities concerned.

19 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 47



1.18 — Emergency Lighting (A criteria)

1. For the purpose of ensuring safety and guiding spectators and staff, the Ground must be equipped
with an emergency lighting system, for use in the event of a general Ground lighting failure.

[RV]

Emergency lighting must be available on at least one side of the field of play to which the public
or staff have access, including all egress and evacuation routes.

L]

If Emergency lighting is only available on one side of the Ground. only this side of the Ground is
permitted to be open at an evening match. This must be reflected in the document used to satisfy
L.01 criteria.

1.19 — Sanitary Facilities (A/ B criteria)

1. Sufficient clean and hygienic sanitary facilities must be distributed evenly throughout all sectors of
the Ground for male and females spectators. Toilets and urinals must be equipped with flushers.
Sinks and amenities such as toilet paper and soap must be available. (4 Criferia).

2. The Recommended requirement for sanitary facilities are the following, based on an 80:20 ratio of
male and female: (B Criteria)
Based on 750 Capacity as per Regulation 1.02

a) 1 seated toilet per 250 males 3)
b) 1 urinal per 125 males; (5)
¢) 1 seated toilet per 125 females (2)
1.20 — First Aid for Spectators (A criteria)

1. Clubs must have the services of at least one fully qualified First Aid Officer at each home match.

2. The First Aid Officer must produce a valid certificate confirming at least six hours of training.

1.21 — Facilities for spectators with disabilities (A / B criteria)

l. Clubs. in consultation with a local disability group (or Level Playing Field for example) must have
undertaken a review of its own procedures with regard to the level of service it provides for
spectators with disabilities. (4 Criteria)

2. The Ground should have dedicated access and seats for spectators with disabilities and their helpers.
(B criteria)

3. In addition, persons with disabilities should have dedicated sanitary facilities as well as refreshment
and catering facilities nearby.

4, One disabled toilet should be available for every 15 wheelchair users.

20 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 48



1.22 — Ground Regulations (A criteria)

1. The Club must arrange to have its Ground Regulations fixed in suitable areas of the Ground in such
a way that the spectators can read them.

(]

Ground Regulations should at least provide information on; Admission rights, abandonment and
postponement of events, a description of prohibitions and penalties such as entering the field of play,
throwing objects, use of foul and abusive language, racist behaviour, restrictions with regard to
alcohol, fireworks, flares, banners, seating rules and causes for ejection from the Ground.

3. Where tickets are issued, the Ground Regulations should be clearly detailed on the ticket.

1.23 — VIP Hospitality Areas (A criteria)

1. A Ground must identify at least 10 VIP seats, which includes five for the visiting team officials.

2. A hospitality area must be provided for VIP’s and for the visiting team officials.

Media Related Areas

The Club shall prepare a report that will be inspected at the audit and which shall refer to the Club’s
procedures and practices with regard to representatives of the media at its games. The report shall
provide detailed information on each of the sub-headings.

I1.24 — Media Working Area (B criteria

1. At least one room equipped with desks, power supply and phone/internet connections should be
provided for media representatives.

1.25 — Press Box (B criteria)

1. The press box should be covered and centrally located in the main grandstand. They should have an
unobstructed view of the entire playing area and easy access to the other media areas.

2

In the press box, all seats with desks should be equipped with a power supply and phone or internet
connections.

The desks should be big enough to accommodate a laptop computer and a notepad.

LI

4. There should be 20 covered seats, 5 of which should be equipped with desks.

1.26 — Television Gantry (B criteria)

1. A television gantry should be provided to meet the broadcaster’s requirements.

21 Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 49



1.27 — Radio Commentary positions (B criteria)

1. One covered radio position should be identified.

2. Each identified commentary position must have at least three seats.

1.28 —Post Match Interview Area (B criteria)

I. The Ground must provide a dedicated post-match interview area, with relevant backboard. The
location must be as close as possible to the dressing room area and the facility must be approved by
the host broadcaster.

1.29 — OB Van Parking Area (B criteria)

1. The Ground should have hardstanding parking facilities to accommodate the host broadcaster OB
Unit in the immediate vicinity. The surface dimension of the area must be at least 100m>.

FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION OF WALES CONTACTS

The Association’s point of contact is -

Mr. Steve Jones
Licensing Manager
0292 20435 859 (T)
02920 496 953 (F)
sjones@faw.co.uk

Alternative contact and Head of Department;

Mr. Andrew Howard
Head of Competitions
0292 20435 847 (T)
02920 496 953 (F)
ahoward@faw.co.uk

The Football Association of Wales, 11/12 Neptune Court, Vanguard Way. Carditf. CF24 5PJ.

FAW representatives involved are subject to confidentiality and independence agreements.

|
[

Version 1.2
FAW Tier 2 Ground Criteria Regulations — Ratified by FAW Council on 29" April 2015 and
updated on 28" February 2017.

Page 50



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5

W
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

CABINET - 29™ MAY 2019

SUBJECT: REGENERATION BOARD - PROJECT PROPOSALS

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To recommended the second tranche of priority schemes for Regeneration Project
Board Development Funding to Cabinet.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 At its meeting on 30" May 2018, Cabinet agreed that a Regeneration Project Board
would be set up with a cross party political representation of Councillors plus key
officers. This group is supported by a Regeneration Assessment Panel consisting of
officers from a range of service areas.

2.2 Since its initial meeting on the 3™ October 2018, The Regeneration Assessment
Panel has met to consider the first suite of seven projects which have been identified

by the Board to move to Assessment Stage. The first tranche of these projects (four
in number) were approved at Cabinet on 13" February 2019.

2.4  This report seeks agreement for the second tranche (remaining three projects)
identified by the Regeneration Project Board and assessed by the Assessment Panel
to be endorsed and funded through the Regeneration Board Project Development
Fund.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 That Cabinet:

i) Endorse the progress of the Tranche 2 Projects

i) Agree that £75,000 of the Regeneration Board remaining Project Development
Fund of £1.21m be allocated to the Tranche 2 Priority schemes identified by the
Regeneration Project Board.

4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 To progress feasibility works in respect of those priority regeneration schemes
identified by the Regeneration Project Board.

5. THE REPORT

5.1 On the 30" May 2018, Cabinet agreed that a Regeneration Project Board (Board) be
set up. The Terms of Reference of the Board were approved by Cabinet at the same

meeting. Page 51



52

5.3

54

55

5.6

5.7

5.8

At the subsequent June 2018 Board meeting a Project Prioritisation Toolkit was
approved for the Board to prioritise projects and this was subsequently agreed by
Council on 17" July 2018. An Assessment Panel has been set up to assess each of
the projects using this toolkit. The Assessment Panel is an internal officer panel from
a wide range of service areas set up specifically to assess strategic regeneration
schemes.

The Assessment Panel met several times during December 2018 and January 2019
to assess the projects progressed to assessment stage by the Board at their Meeting
on 23 October 2018. The projects are as follows:

T1 Ystrad Mynach Park & Ride;

T5 Llanbradach Park & Ride;

T6 Caerphilly Interchange;

Gen 19 Oakdale Business Park;
Gen22 Cwmcarn Forest Drive;
Gen23 Park Lane, Caerphilly;

Gen24 Pentrebane Street, Caerphilly.

Further to assessment of projects in December 2018 and January 2019, an initial
tranche (Tranche 1) of priority schemes was recommended to Cabinet on 13®
February 2019 for Development Funding as follows:

T5 Llanbradach Park & Ride;
T6 Caerphilly Interchange;

Gen 19 Oakdale Business Park;
Gen23 Park Lane, Caerphilly;

Since that date additional funding has been secured to enhance and supplement the
Regeneration Board Project Development Fund. Cabinet on the 30" January 2019
determined to release £1.2m of reserves for Regeneration Board Projects.

The remaining priority projects (Tranche 2) have now been assessed by the
Assessment Panel and are being presented to Cabinet for endorsement and funding
(where required) from the Regeneration Board Development Fund as follows:

o T1 Ystrad Mynach P& R
o Gen22 Cwmcarn Forest Drive
o Gen24 Pentrebane Street Redevelopment

Details of each project is set out below. More detailed information is given in
Appendix 1.

T1 Ystrad Mynach Park & Ride

Total Project Cost Estimate (£): Unknown.
Request for funding from Regeneration Board Project Development Fund (£): £0

This bid seeks CCBC Project Board endorsement only; it does not require a capital
contribution at this stage. There is an opportunity to provide an additional 113 car
parking spaces and facilities to encourage active travel at Ystrad Mynach railway
station. The scheme is identified in the Local Transport Plan. Financial support is not
required from the Programme Board at present as detailed design work is to be
financed through the Local Transport Fund, should it's 2019/20 grant bid be
successful. There may be additional calls on the Development Fund as this project

Page 52



5.9

5.10

511

5.12

5.13

progresses, but it is hoped that Transport for Wales will fund the actual physical
works even though no formal funding route has yet been established.

Gen22 Cwmcarn Forest Drive, Risca

Total Project Cost estimate (£): Unknown.

Request for funding from Regeneration Board Project Development Fund (£):
£75,000

£1m is being invested in the Council owned attraction up to 2020 to improve the
visitor experience. In order to continue the momentum and develop Cwmcarn into the
strongest outdoor visitor attraction in South East Wales, it is proposed that a
business plan is now developed which will identify the primary visitor focused
objectives for Cwmcarn venue and will investigate the type of new attractions and
possible private investment opportunities that could add value to the visitor offer.
£75,000 has been requested for the preparation of this business plan.

Gen 24 Pentrebane Street Redevelopment

Total Project Cost estimate (£): £6.8m.
Request for funding from Regeneration Board Project Development Fund (£): £0

This is a joint project with Linc Housing Association. This bid seeks CCBC Project
Board endorsement only, it does not require a capital contribution at this stage. The
overall project costs are circa £6.8m which will be funded from Linc Housing
Associations own finance, WG Social Housing Grant and Targeted Regeneration
Investment monies. Working in partnership with the Council, Linc HA have
developed a feasibility study for a scheme that will re-invigorate this part of the town
centre. The project would see:
¢ the demolition of the large three storey building that dominates the southern
side of the street,
¢ the redevelopment of the site for up to 60 units of affordable/market housing,
¢ the ground floor accommodating large flexible commercial space to support
new businesses along with several work shed units for companies to grow
into.

As the scheme progresses there may be a requirement to call on the Development
Fund.

If Cabinet approve these projects, this will result in a pipeline of seven prioritised
projects that will be the focus of the Council’s initial regeneration priorities in the short
to medium term. The pipeline of projects will continue to be reported to Cabinet on a
six monthly basis and be updated accordingly as schemes progress.

Conclusion

This report is being presented to Cabinet to seek approval for funding or
endorsement to progress feasibility works in respect of Tranche 2 priority
regeneration schemes identified by the Regeneration Project Board.

ASSUMPTIONS

This report assumes that Tranche 2 projects, once supported by Cabinet, will be
developed to a stage where they are robust enough to bid for external funding.

Page 53



7.1

8.1

8.2

9.1

LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES

Corporate Plan 2018-2023.

The report recommendations contributes towards or impacts predominantly on the
following Corporate Well-being Objectives:

Objective 2 - Enabling employment.

Objective 3 - Addressing the availability, condition and sustainability of homes
throughout the county borough.

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system.

Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle.

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

The work of the Regeneration Board will contribute towards significant levels of
community regeneration and infrastructure development which will help to create an
environment that we all want to live in, now and in the future. This report therefore
potentially contributes to all seven wellbeing goals:

A globally responsible Wales

A prosperous Wales

A resilient Wales

A healthier Wales

A more equal Wales

A Wales of cohesive communities

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

The report recommendations are consistent with the five ways of working as defined
within the sustainable development principle in the Act. The five ways of working of
the sustainable development principle, listed in the Act are:

Long Term — The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to
safeguard the ability of future generations to meet their long-term needs
Prevention - How acting to prevent problems occurring, or getting worse, may
help public bodies meet their objectives.

Integration — Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may
impact upon each of the well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the
objectives of other public bodies

Collaboration — Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different
parts of the body itself) that could help the body to meet its well-being
objectives

Involvement — The importance of involving people with an interest in
achieving the well-being goals, and ensuring that those people reflect the
diversity of the area which the body serves.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific equalities implications associated with this report for any
specific groups or individuals therefore a full equalities impact assessment has not
been carried out.

Page 54



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.

111

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

Author:

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

An overall project development fund of £1.5m has been approved and will allow a
project team of officers to develop projects ready for implementation once funding
becomes available.

The Tranche 1 projects that have been approved have been allocated £290,000 of
the £1.5m Development Fund, leaving plentiful resources (£1.21m) to fund Tranche 2
projects.

Tranche 2 projects request £75,000 in total. This would leave an active development
fund of £1.135m.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct personnel implications associated with this report.
CONSULTATIONS

All consultation responses are reflected in the report.

STATUTORY POWER

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Local Government Acts.

Allan Dallimore, Regeneration Services Manager

Consultees: Clir Sean Morgan, Cabinet Member for Economy, Infrastructure, Sustainability

& Wellbeing of Future Generations Champion (Chair)
Mark S. Williams, Interim Corporate Director Communities
Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services and Section
151 Officer

Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning

Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure

Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/Monitoring Officer
ClIr Elsbury — St Martins Ward

CliIr Fussell — St Martins Ward

ClIr Kent — St Martins Ward

Cllr Whitcombe — Abercarn Ward

ClIr Preece — Abercarn Ward

Clir Angel — Ystrad Myncah Ward

Cllr James — Ystrad Mynach Ward

Appendices:
Appendix 1: RPB Assessment Panel — Project Information Forms for the Tranche 2 projects

Page 55



T1: Ystrad Mynach P&R

RPB ASESSMENT PANEL — PROJECT INFORMATION FORM (PIF)

PROJECT NAME: Ystrad Mynach Park and Ride Expansion

SECTION/TEAM SUBMITTING PROJECT: Head of Infrastructure

LOCATION AND WARD: Ystrad Mynach town, Ystrad Mynach Ward

DESCRIPTION:

There is an opportunity to provide an additional 113 car parking spaces and facilities to encourage
active travel at Ystrad Mynach railway station. The scheme is identified in the Local Transport Plan
and the emerging Ystrad Mynach Masterplan and has Cabinet approval. Land required to progress
the scheme is either in CCBC or TFW ownership. The P&R facility will be built on TFW land whilst an
access road to serve it will be constructed on the edge of land currently utilised by local primary
schools as a recreational area.

The existing P&R is over subscribed and as a consequence the surrounding streets often experience
overflow parking. The expansion of the current park and ride will alleviate this pressure and bring
additional benefits to the station and the town. The town is strategically located in the Rhymney
Valley and has in recent years attracted significant investment from both the public and private
sector. The improved connectivity delivered through this project will have a positive effect on the
ongoing development of Ystrad Mynach which has recently been identified by WG as a key economic
corridor. Pressure on the current facilities has been projected to increase so it is essential to try to
cater for this demand.

The availability of an accessible public transport network is critical to service the area and the
expansion of a P&R at this location would remove traffic and reduce congestion on the strategic
highway network serving Cardiff.

Initial design work has been undertaken by Network Rail/Transport for Wales. A bid has been made
to the Local Transport Fund for detailed design and feasibility to be conducted to enable the Council
to discuss with WG’s TFW the best way to deliver this scheme financially.

Overall benefits of the scheme include:

- Increasing levels of public transport use

- Cater for existing and future demand for P& R facilities

- Reducing car usage on heavily congested networks

- Improve modal interchange

- Create employment opportunities by improving connectivity to a larger catchment

- Allowing people alternative means of accessing leisure, cultural, employment and training
opportunities

- Linking up with the active travel network of routes being introduced within the county borough.

Programme timeframe of 2023 is achievable for full implementation. If the local transport fund bid
is successful, detailed design work could start shortly.

Financial support is not required from the Programme Board at present. Detailed design work will be
covered off from other sources. It is hoped that TFW will fund the actual works but this has not yet
been agreed.

Page 56




STRATEGIC FIT (SF) ASESSMENT (R G):

R A G Status
51.3%

Notes:

TOTAL PROJECT COST ESTIMATE (£):Financial support is not required from the Programme Board at
present.

Detailed design work is to be financed through a Local Transport Fund application. It is hoped that
TFW will fund the actual physical works but no formal funding route has yet been established.

DELIVERABILITY ASESSMENT (R A G): R A G Status
70%

Notes:

CCBC REGENERATION BOARD RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL NeGVBESNI[C\ANNV]a=

The provision of an extended, strategic park and ride facility at
Ystrad Mynach will help to absorb the excess park and ride
demand and also cater for latent and future demand at this busy
station. It will encourage greater use of the rail service on the
Rhymney Valley line for those in the Mid Valleys area and offer a
more accessible rail network that will enable car users to switch
to rail for their everyday journeys. The proposed scheme will
increase levels of public transport use, reduce levels of car use
particularly on the road network to Cardiff and will also improve
modal interchange by providing a new strategic park and ride
facility.

The scheme has the backing of both CCBC and TFW and is
identified as a core project in the emerging Ystrad Mynach master
plan.

The proposals contribute to the following themes within the
CCBC Regeneration Strategy:

e Supporting people

e Supporting Business

e Supporting Quality of Life

e Connecting People and Places

DATE: 30th January 2019

Page 57



Gen22: Cwmcarn Forest

RPB ASESSMENT PANEL — PROJECT INFORMATION FORM (PIF)
PROJECT NAME: Rediscovering Cwmcarn Forest
SECTION/TEAM SUBMITTING PROJECT: Head of Regeneration and Planning

LOCATION AND WARD: Cwmcarn, Crosskeys Ward.

DESCRIPTION:
This project is aimed at continuing the momentum at Cwmcarn Forest.

f£1m is being invested in the Council owned attraction up until 2020. This consists of:
e Accommodation offer will be improved with new chalet style cabins being introduced .
e Cwmcarn lakeside enhancements
e Improved car parking
e Anew Adventure Hub
e Cross Country Cycle Route
e New family cycle route
e More walking routes introduced
e Better entrance/arrival

There is also an opportunity for the Council to take over management of the scenic drive.
Discussions with NRW have been positive and they could invest upwards of £2m on opening the
drive up to motor vehicles and dealing with fire damage on the hillside.

In order to continue the momentum and turn Cwmecarn into the strongest outdoor visitor attraction
in South East Wales, it is proposed that a business plan is now developed which identifies the
primary visitor focused objectives for Cwmcarn venue and investigates new attractions and possible
private investment opportunities that could add value to the visitor offer.

STRATEGIC FIT (SF) ASESSMENT (R G):

R A G Status
44.5%

Notes:

TOTAL PROJECT COST ESTIMATE (£):£75,000 requested to develop a business plan to identify
opportunities to build on the current investment in the venue

DELIVERABILITY ASESSMENT (R A G): R A G Status
60%

Page 58




Notes:

CCBC REGENERATION BOARD RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL CHAIR’S SIGNATURE
There is a new focus on making Council owned attractions more

commercially viable. The current investment in the venue will

help towards the goal. However there are huge opportunities for

growing the visitor offer further with the introduction of new

attractions and taking control of the scenic drive.

Funding a business plan commission would help to establish the
best ways to effectively “sweat “ this Council owned/controlled
asset so that it becomes a profitable operation and draws visitors
in from a much wider catchment.

Developing Cwmcarn into a regionally significant tourist attraction
will help to stimulate the local economy and allow local
businesses to prosper.

The proposals contribute to the following themes within the
CCBC Regeneration Strategy:

e Supporting people

e Supporting business

e Supporting Quality of Life

DATE:25% February 2019

Gen 24: Pentrebane Street Redevelopment

RPB ASESSMENT PANEL — PROJECT INFORMATION FORM (PIF)

PROJECT NAME: Pentrebane Street Redevelopment

SECTION/TEAM SUBMITTING PROJECT: Head of Regeneration and Planning

LOCATION AND WARD: Caerphilly Town Centre, St Martins ward.

DESCRIPTION:

Pentrebane Street in Caerphilly runs directly off the main retail street in the town centre yet suffers
from under occupation within the ground floor retail units. The building stock on the south side of
the street houses some disparate uses and the upper floor remain empty. The block houses a
disused nightclub and a double height market hall which houses only 10 to 15 small stall holders.
Small interventions to improve the health of the street have had little impact and it is now showing
real signs of deterioration, particularly the building fabric.

LINC housing association is taking the lead on this project. Working in partnership with the Council

Page 59



they have undertaken exhaustive investigatory work to develop a feasibility study for a scheme that
will re-invigorate this part of the town centre.

The project comprises the full demolition of the large three storey building that dominates the
southern side of the street.

The redevelopment scheme will be built entirely within the existing building footprint and will
consist of the following:

- Provision of upto 60 units of affordable/market healthy housing over 6 floors in a
sustainable location

- Ground floor accommodate large flexible commercial space to support new businesses and
possibly an events space to support the emerging night time economy.

- Several work shed units for companies to grow into

- Space for a café/A3 use

- The scheme will create apprenticeship opportunities and work experience placements via
the build contract

- A community benefits fund will he established for local projects

- The scheme will adhere to green build principles — target carbon and energy efficiency in the
build design

This bid seeks CCBC Project Board endorsement only — it does not require a capital contribution at
this stage. The overall project costs are circa £6.8m which will be funded from Linc’s own finance,
WG Social Housing Grant and Targeted Regeneration Investment monies.

If CCBC are required to instigate CPO powers to gain the freehold interest then there will a cost
associated with the legal costs associated with this process.

Overall benefits include:

- Beneficial use of brownfield site in the heart of the town centre

- Bolstering housing offer in town and therefore increase spend and overall use of the town
- Opportunity for local supply chains - both in construction and running of venue

- Bolstering and diversifying business offer in the town centre.

- Opportunities for local people to gain employment

- Act as a catalyst to further investment in hit tech economy

- Scheme will secure upto £6.8m of development

STRATEGIC FIT (SF) ASESSMENT (R G):

R A G Status
50.3%

Notes:

TOTAL PROJECT COST ESTIMATE (£): The whole scheme is currently priced at £6.8million. Monies will
be secured from WG’s TRI programme, Social Housing Grant and Linc’s own private finance to fully
fund the scheme.. No CCBC contribution is required unless CPO powers are required.

[R 2 G status |

Page 60




DELIVERABILITY ASESSMENT (R A G): 62.5%

Notes:

CCBC REGENERATION BOARD RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL CHAIR’S SIGNATURE

This project is identified as a strategic project in the recently
adopted Caerphilly Basin Masterplan and is one of the key
schemes identified for the regeneration of Caerphilly Town
Centre. It will bolster the housing offer in the town centre and
help enormously in diversifying and strengthening the town’s
business economy. Council support for the project will help
towards bringing an underutilised town centre site into beneficial
use and will help ensure up to £6.8m is invested in a quality
housing/business development at Pentrebane Street.

No CCBC financial input is required unless CCBC need to instigate
CPO powers .

The proposals contribute to the following themes within the
CCBC Regeneration Strategy:

e Supporting people

e Supporting business

e Supporting Quality of Life

DATE: 17" January 2019

Page 61



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 62



	Agenda
	3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 15fed Mai 2019.
	4 Egwyddorion Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol (Meysydd Chwarae).
	Community Asset Transfer Principles (Playing Fields)
	cabinet – 29th May 2019
	SUBJECT: COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFER PRINCIPLES (PLAYING FIELDS)
	REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE SERVICES

	Community Asset Transfer Principles (Playing Fields) App 1
	Community Asset Transfer Principles (Playing Fields)
	Environment and Sustainability scrutiny committee
	– 14TH MAY 2019
	SUBJECT: COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFER PRINCIPLES (PLAYING FIELDS)
	REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES
	1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
	2. SUMMARY
	3. RECOMMENDATIONS
	4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
	5. THE REPORT
	6. ASSUMPTIONS
	7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES
	8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS
	9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
	10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
	13. STATUTORY POWER
	14. URGENCY
	Appendices:


	Community Asset Transfer Principles (Playing Fields) App 1
	Community Asset Transfer Principles (Playing Fields) App 2
	Community Asset Transfer Principles (Playing Fields) App 3


	5 Bwrdd Adfywio - Cynigion Prosiect

